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. FINANCIAL REVIEW

Operating Results
Overview
In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001, SECOM continued
to enhance its security services as well as its operations
in such fields as medical services, non-life insurance,
information systems, GIS services, education and real
estate development. We also stepped up marketing, sys-
tems improvement and product development efforts.
Consolidated revenue and other income amounted
to ¥467.7 billion, an increase of 13.4%, or ¥55.3 billion,
from the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000. This rise was
attributable to continued growth in revenue and other
income in the security services segment, the inclusion of a
full year of revenue of subsidiary Pasco—compared with
only six months in the previous period—and gain on secu-
rities contribution to employee retirement benefit trust.
Services, comprising centralized and other security
services, produced revenue and other income of ¥281.7
billion, an increase of 4.1%, or ¥11.0 billion, and
accounted for 60.2% of consolidated revenue and other
income, down from 65.7% in the previous period. Revenue
and other income from merchandise, software, medical,
geographic information system and real estate climbed
33.2%, or ¥32.4 billion, to ¥129.8 billion, equivalent to
27.8% of total revenue and other income, up from 23.6%.
Insurance services generated consolidated revenue and
other income of ¥21.7 billion, a decline of 27.5%, or ¥8.2
billion, and represented 4.6% of the consolidated total,
down from 7.3%. SECOM also recorded ¥2.6 billion in gain
on sale of securities, net, and ¥10.4 billion in interest and
other. In addition, SECOM contributed certain securities to
its employee retirement benefit trust to increase pension
plan funding, resulting in a gain of ¥21.4 billion.

Segment Results

Revenue and other income in the security services seg-
ment totaled ¥316.1 billion in the period under review, an
increase of 6.9%, or ¥20.3 billion, and accounted for 67.6%
of consolidated revenue and other income, compared
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with 71.8% in the previous period. Revenue and other
income from electronic security services was ¥234.4 bil-
lion, up 3.9%, as commercial security and home security
services—the main on-line security services—recorded a
firm 4.1% gain, to ¥230.8 billion. The success of these ser-
vices countered a 3.3% dip in large-scale proprietary sys-
tems, to ¥3.6 billion. Other security services generated
revenue and other income of ¥47.3 billion, an increase of
4.7%, composed of revenue and other income from static
guard services of ¥32.2 billion, up 1.7%, and armored car
services of ¥15.1 billion, an 11.6% gain. Merchandise and
other contributed ¥34.4 billion, a 37.2% increase.

Revenue and other income in the medical services
segment totaled ¥6.3 billion, up 4.8 times from the previ-
ous year, and accounted for 1.4% of consolidated revenue
and other income, compared with 0.3% in the previous
period. This gain was largely attributable to an improve-
ment in the performance of our home medical care ser-
vices and to contributions from medical instruments firm
Mac, which became a consolidated subsidiary during the
period under review.

The insurance services segment generated ¥22.7 bil-
lion in revenue and other income, a decline of 25.5%. This
segment represented 4.8% of consolidated revenue and
other income, down from 7.4% the previous year. This
decline was primarily attributable to a decrease in gain on
sale of securities held by Secom General Insurance for the
period under review.

In the information and communication related and
other services segment, which encompasses network-
related and GIS services as well as real estate develop-
ment, revenue and other income advanced 27.3%, to
¥92.6 billion, and constituted 19.8% of consolidated
revenue and other income, compared with 17.6% in the
previous period. Growth in this segment reflected the
inclusion of a full year of revenue from Pasco, brisk gains
in such I'Tbased business areas as network construction
services, and a strong performance by SECOM’s real estate
development arm.



Costs and Expenses

Costs and expenses climbed 13.4%, or ¥45.4 billion, to
¥385.0 billion, primarily owing to the increase in revenue
and other income. Cost of services—that is, cost related to
electronic and other security services—rose 6.0%, or ¥8.5
billion, to ¥150.4 billion, equivalent to 53.4% of consoli-
dated revenue and other income from services, up from
52.4% in the previous period. This was attributable to an
increase in personnel costs and depreciation expenses.

Cost of merchandise, software, medical, geographic
information system and real estate amounted to ¥95.0 bil-
lion, up 35.7%, or ¥25.0 billion, and represented 73.2% of
consolidated revenue and other income for the category,
up from 71.8% in the previous year. This increase was
attributable to the inclusion of a full year of revenue from
subsidiary Pasco, increased real estate sales and the
consolidation of new subsidiary Mac.

Cost of insurance services was ¥15.0 billion, a decline
of 20.6%, or ¥3.9 billion, from the previous period, repre-
senting 69.0% of revenue and other income from insurance
services, compared with 63.1% in the previous period.

Selling, general and administrative expenses
advanced 7.9%, or ¥7.8 billion, to ¥106.9 billion, or 22.9%
of consolidated revenue and other income, a decrease
from 24.0% in the previous year. Other expenses climbed
88.7%, or ¥7.5 billion, to ¥15.9 billion. This increase was
attributable to amortization of goodwill, valuation losses
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in investment securities and other investments and the
allowance for doubtful accounts.

Income

Income before income taxes in the period under review
was ¥82.7 billion, an increase of 13.5%, or ¥9.9 billion,
reflecting a gain on securities contribution to employee
retirement benefit trust. Income taxes climbed 57.4%, or
¥13.0 billion, to ¥35.7 billion, and the effective tax rate
increased to 43.2%, from 31.1%. The lower effective tax
rate in the previous period reflected improved perfor-
mances by several domestic subsidiaries with operating
loss carryforwards, which were subject to valuation
allowance, as outlined in Note 15 of the notes to
consolidated financial statements.

As a consequence of higher income taxes and the
cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax, net
income fell 7.0%, or ¥3.3 billion, to ¥44.1 billion (see Note
2 (12) of the notes to consolidated financial statements).
Return on revenue and other income was 9.4%, down
from 11.5% in the previous period. Basic net income per
share was ¥189.28, down from ¥203.67 per share in the
previous period, while diluted net income per share
amounted to ¥189.13, down from ¥203.52. Cash dividends
paid per share of ¥40.00 were approved at the general
shareholders’ meeting held on June 28, 2001.
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Financial Position

Total assets of SECOM amounted to ¥868.2 billion as of
March 31, 2001, an increase of 11.4%, or ¥88.7 billion, from
the previous fiscal year-end. Time deposits slipped 23.5%,
or ¥3.8 billion, to ¥12.5 billion, while the shift of certain
investments to investment securities prompted a 76.0%, or
¥69.6 billion, decline in short-term investments, to ¥22.0
billion. These declines countered a 7.9%, or ¥10.4 billion,
increase in cash and cash equivalents, to ¥141.7 billion,
and a 39.1%, or ¥11.6 billion, gain in short-term receiv-
ables, which resulted in a balance of ¥41.3 billion. As a
consequence, total current assets declined 10.5%, or ¥45.7
billion, to ¥387.3 billion, and the current ratio slipped to
1.8 times, from 2.0 times at the end of the previous year.

Investments and long-term receivables advanced
49.6%, or ¥79.2 billion, to ¥238.8 billion. This increase
reflected several factors. Investment securities rose 54.8%,
or ¥42.3 billion, to ¥119.4 billion, primarily owing to the
aforementioned reclassification of investments from
current assets. An increase in contracts held, mainly
insurance policies, caused long-term receivables to jump
59.7%, or ¥25.6 billion, to ¥68.4 billion. New investments
in a CATV-related company and others pushed invest-
ments in affiliated companies up 31.3%, or ¥7.7 billion,
to ¥32.3 billion.

Property, plant and equipment, less accumulated
depreciation, was ¥198.4 billion, up 16.2%, or ¥27.7 bil-
lion. This increase was largely attributable to a 16.6%, or
¥38.3 billion, increase in security equipment and control
stations, to ¥268.3 billion.

Other assets soared 168.7%, or ¥27.5 billion, to ¥43.7
billion, mainly reflecting increases in deferred income
taxes, as outlined in Note 15 of the notes to consolidated
financial statements.

Total liabilities rose 23.2%, or ¥87.6 billion, to ¥464.4
billion. Total current liabilities edged down 0.5%, or ¥1.1 bil-
lion, to ¥218.4 billion, owing to a 46.3% decline in payables
of subsidiary Secom Home Life for its real estate develop-
ment, to ¥19.2 billion. Investment deposits by policyholders
of subsidiary Secom General Insurance advanced 71.1%, or
¥54.1 billion, to ¥130.2 billion. Accrued pension and sever-
ance costs increased 113.0%, or ¥11.3 billion, to ¥21.3 bil-
lion. This increase was primarily the result of recording an
additional minimum pension liability, owing to an increase
in benefit obligation attributable to a reduction in the
assumed discount rate used in computing benefit obliga-
tions for Japanese pension plans, and decreases in the
current value of pension assets held by SECOM, reflecting
sluggish stock market conditions in Japan.

Total shareholders’ equity amounted to ¥377.5 bil-
lion, up 1.0%, or ¥3.6 billion, reflecting a 15.2%, or ¥33.8
billion, increase in retained earnings, to ¥256.1 billion;
additional minimum pension liabilities adjustments of
¥17.1 billion, a ¥16.3 billion increase from the previous
period, owing to the aforementioned increase of mini-
mum pension liabilities; and a net unrealized loss in debt
and equity securities of ¥2.3 billion, compared with a net
unrealized gain at the previous fiscal yearend of ¥17.3
billion, mainly as a result of sluggish stock market
conditions in Japan. The equity ratio fell to 43.5%,

Shareholders’ Total Assets Depreciation and

Equity per Share (In billions of yen) Amortization
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from 48.0%, attributable to such factors as the impact of
higher investment deposits by policyholders of Secom
General Insurance.

Cash Flows

SECOM is committed to maintaining sufficient liquidity to
ensure flexibility in its operations and guarantee a solid
financial foundation. Accordingly, to the best of its ability
the Company finances strategic investments with cash
generated by its operating activities.

In the period under review, net cash provided by oper-
ating activities amounted to ¥136.3 billion, an increase of
97.3%, or ¥67.3 billion, from the previous year. This change
primarily reflected a ¥54.1 billion increase in investment
deposits by policyholders, up from an ¥18.6 billion
increase in the previous period. Depreciation and amorti-
zation was ¥44.8 billion, an increase from ¥34.2 billion.

Net cash used in investing activities totaled ¥117.8
billion, up 45.5%, or ¥36.8 billion, from the previous year,
primarily as a consequence of payments for purchases of
property, plant and equipment of ¥51.8 billion, compared
with ¥37.5 billion in the previous year; ¥19.2 billion in
payments for investments in securities, up from ¥2.7 bil-
lion in the previous year, primarily owing to investment in
a CATV-related affiliate; an increase in short-term receiv-
ables, net, of ¥22.8 billion, compared with an increase of
¥1.1 billion in the previous year; and payments for long-
term receivables of ¥36.6 billion, up from ¥24.7 billion.
Increase in short-term receivables, net, and the increase
in payments for long-term receivables were mainly

Capital Investment
(In billions of yen)

i

97 98 99 00 01

attributable to the rise in investment deposits by policy-
holders of Secom General Insurance.

Net cash used in financing activities was ¥8.4 billion,
in contrast with ¥12.7 billion net cash provided by such
activities in the previous year. Proceeds from long-term
debt were ¥22.0 billion, while repayments of long-term
debt were ¥16.1 billion, resulting in a net increase of ¥5.9
billion, compared with a net decrease of ¥1.9 billion in
the previous period. On the other hand, bank loans
decreased ¥4.5 billion, compared with a ¥17.2 billion
increase in the previous period. Accordingly, net pro-
ceeds from bank loans and long-term debt amounted to
¥1.4 billion, compared with ¥15.3 billion in the previous
year. A pershare dividend increase to ¥40.00, from ¥35.00
(after adjustment to reflect the impact of a stock split),
boosted dividends paid to ¥9.3 billion, from ¥8.1 billion
in the previous year.

As a consequence of SECOM’s operating, investing
and financing activities during the period under review,
cash and cash equivalents at end of year amounted to
¥141.7 billion, up 7.9%, or ¥10.4 billion, from ¥131.3
billion a year eatlier.

Subsequent Event

On June 27, 2001, SECOM issued unsecured bonds due on
June 27, 2006, in the amount of ¥30.0 billion, with a
coupon rate of 0.53%. The cash raised will finance the
Company’s capital expenditures, strategic investments and
working capital.

Cash Flows
(In billions of yen)
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. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
SECOM CO., LTD. and Subsidiaries
March 31, 2001 and 2000

In millions of yen

Translation into thousands
of U.S. dollars (Note 3)

March 31 March 31
ASSETS 2001 2000 2001
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (NOTE B)......cccciceeieeiiiiieeeiieeeceieee e e errre e e e sree e s e esnseeesearaeeeesnneessennns ¥ 141,725 ¥ 131,329 $ 1,142,944
Time depoSits ..oeeevivceeeiirreeeeeeeee e 12,460 16,291 100,484
Cash deposits (Note 7) 36,597 37,492 295,137
Short-term investments (Note 8) 21,993 91,640 177,363
Notes and accounts receivable, trade ........ceviceeiiiiieeeeceee e s 48,917 47,930 394,492
DUE from SUDSCIIDEIS ettt e e s nn e e s e e e e e snnees 16,951 12,151 136,702
INVENTOTIES (NOLE ) ..eeiiiiiiiiei et e e s e e s e e e an e e s s e e e e e s enrreeeennnneen 49,713 52,400 400,911
Short-term receivables .........c.c......... 41,331 29,714 333,314
Allowance for doubtful accounts (1,096) (974) (8,839)
Deferred insurance acquisition cost (Note 12) 2,044 1,901 16,484
Deferred income taXxes (NOLE 15)...iuuiiiicciieiiiiiiei s rne e esa e s nnees 7,379 4,383 59,508
Other CUIMTENT @SSETS 1.uutiiiiiiiiiii it e et s e e s e s e e e e s sse e e s e ane e e e e esseeeesannneeeseanns 9,319 8,733 75,153
Total current assets.... 387,333 432,990 3,123,653
Investments and long-term receivables:
Investment SECUTTIES (INOTE 8) ......uuueieiiieieeeee e e e e e e e e e nre e e e e e e e e e e e e e e nnnnnnnnes 119,438 77,143 963,210
Investments in affiliated companies (NOte T0)......cccouiiiiiiiiiiiinii e 32,349 24,635 260,879
LONG-tEIM FECEIVADIES ..eeiiiiiiiiii ettt e s s e s s ne e e e s b e e e s s nnneeeesnnnee 68,389 42,813 551,524
LR TN o (=Y 0 Yo L] £ U UPPPRPROY 11,609 9,773 93,621
Other investments ......cccccccveeeeueeeen. 14,554 10,857 117,371
Allowance for doubtful accounts... (7,567) (5,637) (61,024)
238,772 159,584 1,925,581
Property, plant and equipment (Notes 11 and 18):
L1221 2 Lo [ SRS PR PR 48,428 45,319 390,548
Buildings and iMPrOVEMENTS. .....c.uiieiiiieee e e s e e s s e e e e enn e e e s s snn e e e nnnnes 64,294 60,768 518,500
Security equipment and CONtrol StAtiONS......c.eieiiiiiiie e 268,332 230,059 2,163,968
Machinery, equipment and autOMODIlES........oocuiiiiiiiiiee e 50,476 45,025 407,065
CONSEIUCLION 1N PrOGIESS . uuiiiiitiieeiiieteessssteesestteesssssresssasseeessaseeessaasseesssasseeessasseeessassseessssssnesaans 2,431 3,692 19,605
433,961 384,863 3,499,686
Accumulated dePreCiation .........uuiiiiieiiii e e e e e e e aaaas (235,608) (214,171) (1,900,065)
198,353 170,692 1,599,621
Other assets:
Telephone and telegraph Utility FghtS ... e 3,681 3,881 29,685
Deferred inCome taxes (NOTE 15) ...uiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiis sttt ssae e ne e s s 16,388 — 132,161
Goodwill (Note 5)..eevvverereeereenenen, 10,169 5,813 82,008
Intangibles and other 13,508 6,588 108,936
43,746 16,282 352,790
B I} =Y - 1111 S PSSR SRRP ¥ 868,204 ¥ 779,548 $ 7,001,645

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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In millions of yen

Translation into thousands
of U.S. dollars (Note 3)

March 31 March 31
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 2001 2000 2001
Current liabilities:
Bank 10ans (NOtES 7 @Nd T7) .eeeiieiiiei ettt e s e e e e s s s nne e e e nnnes ¥ 72,527 ¥ 74,660 $ 584,895
Current portion of long-term debt (Notes 11 and 18) 14,351 5,715 115,734
Notes and accounts payable, trade.....ccccceeeeeiiiiiieeennnnn. 15,855 16,342 127,863
Other PAYADIES ...ttt e e e e e e at e e e b e e e ne e e enn e e sne e s neeeenreeenne 19,243 35,803 155,186
DEPOSITS FECEIVEA. ... it e e e e sn e s b e e s anr e e e ne e s ne s 17,099 20,549 137,895
Deferred revenue (NOTE 2 (12)) couiiii ittt e s e e e sane e e s s snne e e s nnnes 36,662 26,087 295,661
ACCIUEA INCOME TAXES wevriiiiiriieeeirieesssisreeessastreeessseeesssssseesssasseeeesssseeessaanneessesseeeeeansneessannnnesssnnnes 18,264 13,647 147,290
Accrued payrolls .......cceuueees 14,264 11,915 115,032
Other current liabilities......... 10,101 14,698 81,460
Total current liabilities 218,366 219,416 1,761,016
Long-term debt (NOteS 11 @and T8) .eciicuiieiiiiiiiii ettt snne s 24,065 23,599 194,072
Guarantee deposits received from SUDSCIIDErS ........cccvieeiiiieieicccee e 17,939 17,086 144,670
Accrued pension and severance Costs (NOTE 13)....ccccuuiiiiiiiiiiii i 21,340 10,021 172,097
Deferred revenue (NOTE 2 (12)) i iecceeeeeciee s eeee e e eeee e e e s s e e e e snee e e e s ee e e e snneeeeenneeeennsneeeeeannnnens 17,206 — 138,758
Unearned premiums and other insurance liabilities (Note 12) . 34,085 25,884 274,879
Investment deposits by policyholders (Note 12) ........ccccccuenneee. 130,187 76,103 1,049,895
Deferred income taxes (Note 15) ......ccccveeeriiiieeeninnns 545 4,620 4,395
(@ oL G E=T o 11 11 =T USSR 641 88 5,169
B0 =Y I L= o1 €= 464,374 376,817 3,744,951
Minority shareholders’ interest in subsidiaries .............ccccovveriieeiiinccccii e, 26,298 28,819 212,081
Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock of ¥50 ($0.40) par value (Notes 16 and 21):
Authorized 900,000,000 shares in 2001 and 300,000,000 shares in 2000;
issued 233,099,744 shares in 2001 and 233,075,442 shares in 2000........cccccccuveerriceeeeninnns 66,127 66,097 533,282
Additional paid-in capital (Notes 16 and 21) .... 79,745 79,713 643,105
Legal reserve (Note 16) .....cccccveeeriiceennieieeennnne 8,618 7,587 69,500
Retained earnings (Note 16) .... 256,108 222,344 2,065,387
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):
Net unrealized gain (loss) in debt and equity securities (NOte 8) ........cccecveeriieerieneieeeneenne (2,329) 17,272 (18,782)
Additional minimum pension liabilities adjustments (Note 13)......cccceeriiiriiiiiniierieeceee (17,110) (765) (137,984)
Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments.......cccoccveeviiieeen i (13,624) (18,294) (109,871)
377,535 373,954 3,044,637
Less—Common stock in treasury, at cost;
510 shares in 2001 and 4,840 shares in 2000 .........ccuuueeiiiirieireeeeiee e e e e e eeeeeeeeee e 3 42 24
Total Shareholders’ EQUILY .uoiiueiii it e e s sne e e e e nsneeeeenas 377,532 373,912 3,044,613
Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 20)
Total liabilities and shareholders’ EQUItY........cccceeriiiiiiieri e ¥868,204  ¥779,548 $7,001,645
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
SECOM CO., LTD. and Subsidiaries
Three years ended March 31, 2001

In millions of yen

Translation into thousands
of U.S. dollars (Note 3)

Years ended March 31

Year ended March 31

2001 2000 1999 2001
Revenue and other income:
LT VAT PRSP ¥281,723 ¥270,741 ¥266,346 $2,271,960
Merchandise, software, medical, geographic information system
and real estate 129,835 97,465 80,902 1,047,056
Insurance services... 21,745 29,985 4,678 175,363
Gain on sale of securities, net (Notes 8 and 22) 2,569 5,454 35,700 20,718
Gain on securities contribution to employee retirement benefit trust
(NOTES 8 ANA T13) ceriiiiiieieeiee e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ennnnnneeeeeeaaeeens 21,366 — — 172,306
Interest and Other (NOTE T4) ...uuiiiiiieiii e 10,433 8,752 6,520 84,137
467,671 412,397 394,146 3,771,540
Costs and expenses:
(OFe Ty o] =TT VAo =X SRS 150,355 141,901 139,764 1,212,540
Cost of merchandise, software, medical, geographic information system
AN TEAI BSTATE ... e e e e e e e r e e e e e e e e e e nnnnnnnereaes 94,994 70,013 61,682 766,081
COSt Of INSUIANCE SEIVICES ..uiiiiiueiiiiiiiieeestieee st e e e s e saraee e e e 15,013 18,908 3,995 121,073
Selling, general and administrative (Notes 2 (14) and 17)....cccccevivenieeesieensinennns 106,927 99,108 96,837 862,314
= (== SRS 1,812 1,229 1,078 14,613
(04 1T €\ o 1= 3 TSSO 15,911 8,431 8,097 128,314
385,012 339,590 311,453 3,104,935
Income before iINCOME TaXEeS .......ccuueeiiiiieeiieeccceeee e e e e 82,659 72,807 82,693 666,605
Income taxes (Note 15):
(O T =Y 1] SRRSO 30,011 27,396 34,946 242,024
(D] =Y (=To PSR PERRRRRRNS 5,659 (4,727) (2,573) 45,637
35,670 22,669 32,373 287,661
Income before minority interest, equity in net income of affiliated
companies and cumulative effect of accounting change..........cccoeuuee... 46,989 50,138 50,320 378,944
Minority interest in subsidiaries ...........cccccv e (482) (3,837) (1,241) (3,887)
Equity in net income of affiliated companies ........ccccccovceeriiiiiiicviiennccr e, 1,310 1,131 839 10,564
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change........cccccceevenns 47,817 47,432 49,918 385,621
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax (Note 2 (12)) .........ccccvrvvennenn (3,699) — — (29,831)
[N = G g T ) /g =SSN ¥ 44118 ¥ 47,432 ¥ 49,918 $ 355,790
Translation into
In yen U.S. dollars (Note 3)
Years ended March 31 Year ended March 31
2001 2000 1999 2001
Per share data (Note 4):
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change—
¥205.15 ¥203.67 ¥214.51 $ 1.65
¥204.99 ¥203.52 ¥214.09 $ 1.65
(¥15.87) ¥ — ¥ — ($0.13)
(¥15.86) ¥ — ¥ — ($0.13)
¥189.28 ¥203.67 ¥214.51 $ 1.52
¥189.13 ¥203.52 ¥214.09 $ 1.52

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
SECOM CO., LTD. and Subsidiaries
Three years ended March 31, 2001

In millions of yen

Accumulated Common
Number of Additional other com- stock
shares Common paid-in Legal Retained  prehensive in treasury
issued stock capital reserve earnings income (loss) stock, at cost Total
Balance, March 31, 1998 ...............ccccooiiiiiii e 116,233,393 ¥65,327 ¥78,928 ¥5,956 ¥142,326 (¥ 8,672) (¥ 25 ¥283,840
Comprehensive income:
NET INCOME ..., — — — — 49,918 — — 49,918
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (Note 16):
Unrealized gain on securities:
Unrealized holding gain arising during the period ................... — — — — — 6,000 — 6,000
Less: Reclassification adjustment for gain
included in NEtINCOME .. ...ooiiiiiiiiiiiiicee e — — — — — (15) — (15)
Minimum pension liabilities adjustments... — — — — — (888) — (888)
Foreign currency translation adjustments.. — — — — — (4,832) — (4,832)
Total comprehensive income ...................... 50,183
Cash dividends .............ccc...... — — — —_ (7,555) —_ —_ (7,555)
Transfer to legal reserve............ — — — 721 (721) — — —
Conversion of convertible bonds.. 158,716 383 383 — — — — 766
Purchase of treasury stock.... — — — — — — (1,640) (1,640)
Reissuance of treasury stock — — 7 — — — 1,546 1,553
Balance, March 31, 1999 ...t 116,392,109 65,710 79,318 6,677 183,968 (8,407) (119) 327,147
Comprehensive income:
NET INCOME ..., — — — — 47,432 — — 47,432
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (Note 16):
Unrealized gain on securities:
Unrealized holding gain arising during the period ................... — — — — — 4,879 — 4,879
Less: Reclassification adjustment for gain
included in NEtINCOME .....c.iiiiiiiiiiic e — — — — — (675) — (675)
Minimum pension liabilities adjustments... — — — — — 8,054 — 8,054
Foreign currency translation adjustments.. — — — — — (5,638) — (5,638)
Total comprehensive income ...................... 54,052
Cash AIVIAENAS ... — — — —_ (8,146) —_ —_ (8,146)
Transfer t0 1egal FESEIVE........ooiiiiiiiii i — — — 910 (910) — — —
Conversion of convertible bonds.. 273,686 387 387 — — — — 774
Stock split (Note 16) .................. 116,409,647 — —_ — — —_ — —_
Purchase of treasury stock.... — — — — — — (4,945) (4,945)
Reissuance of treasury StOCK .........c.oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiece — — 8 — — — 5,022 5,030
Balance, March 31,2000 ...................ccoooiiiiiiiiic e 233,075,442 66,097 79,713 7,587 222,344 (1,787) (42) 373,912
Comprehensive income:
NET INCOME ... — — — — 44,118 — — 44,118
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (Note 16):
Unrealized gain (loss) on securities:
Unrealized holding loss arising during the period.................... —_ - - —_ —_ (6,496) —_ (6,496)
Less: Reclassification adjustment for gain
included in NETINCOME .. ...coviiiiiice e — — — — — (13,105) — (13,105)
Minimum pension liabilities adjustments... —_ —_ —_ —_ — (16,345) — (16,345)
Foreign currency translation adjustments.. — — — — — 4,670 — 4,670
Total comprehensive income ...................... 12,842
Cash dividends .............c........ — — — — (9,323) — — (9,323)
Transfer to legal reserve............ — — — 1,031 (1,031) — — —
Conversion of convertible bonds...........cccccooviiiiiiiiii 24,302 30 30 — — — — 60
Purchase of treasury StOCK.........c.ocoviiiiiiiiiiiiiec e —_ - - —_ —_ —_ (801) (801)
Reissuance of treasury stock — — 2 — — — 840 842
Balance, March 31, 2007 ............cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieicice e 233,099,744 ¥66,127 ¥79,745 ¥8,618 ¥256,108  (¥33,063) (¥ 3) ¥377,532
Translation into thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 3)
Accumulated Common
Additional other com- stock
Common paid-in Legal Retained  prehensive in treasury
stock capital reserve earnings income (loss) stock, at cost Total
Balance, March 31, 2000 .................cooiiiiiiii e $533,040 $642,847 $61,185 $1,793,097 ($ 14,411) ($ 339) $3,015,419
Comprehensive income: .
N[ST N aToTe a a1 TN — — — 355,790 — — 355,790
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (Note 16):
Unrealized gain (loss) on securities:
Unrealized holding loss arising during the period..........ccccccooeiiviiiiiiiinicen, - —_ —_ —_ (52,387) —_ (52,387)
Less: Reclassification adjustment for gain
included in NETINCOME ......iiiiiiiiii e — — — — (105,685) — (105,685)
Minimum pension liabilities adjustments... — — — — (131,815) — (131,815)
Foreign currency translation adjustments .. — — — — 37,661 — 37,661
Total comprehensive income 103,564
Cash dividends ...................... — — —_ (75,185) — — (75,185)
Transfer to legal reserve........... — — 8,315 (8,315) — — —
Conversion of convertible bonds.. 242 242 — — — — 484
Purchase of treasury stock....... — — — — — (6,460) (6,460)
Reissuance of treasury stock — 16 — — — 6,775 6,791
Balance, March 31, 2007 ...........cooouiiiiiiiiiieiie ittt ee et e e st e e eibeesibeesieeeenereeas $533,282  $643,105 $69,500 $2,065,387 ($266,637) ($ 24) $3,044,613

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
SECOM CO., LTD. and Subsidiaries
Three years ended March 31, 2001

In millions of yen

Translation into thousands
of U.S. dollars (Note 3)

Years ended March 31

Year ended March 31

2001 2000 1999 2001
Cash flows from operating activities:
AL BT o o o o o 1= RSP ¥ 44,118 ¥ 47,432 ¥ 49,918 $ 355,790
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities—
Depreciation and amortization ..........c.co e 44,775 34,232 30,542 361,089
Accrual for pension and severance costs, less payments .... 4,190 525 1,733 33,790
Deferred iNCOME TaXES ...uuiiiuiieiiieeiieeciiee et e e e e e eneee s 5,659 (4,727) (2,573) 45,637
Net loss on sales and disposal of property, plant and equipment.... 2,655 2,129 1,806 21,411
(Gain) loss on sales of iNVeStMEeNt SECUNTIES.....ccueiiiecireeieiiiee e (1,998) (1,163) 182 (16,113)
Gain on securities contribution to employee retirement benefit trust (Note 8)....... (21,366) — — (172,306)
Gain on sales of subsidiary’s shares (NOte 22).......cccccvriiiiiiiiiieeieeee e (571) — — (4,605)
Gain on sales of shares of Secom Techno Service Co., Ltd. — (4,291) — —
Gain on sales of shares of Tokyo Internet Corporation .........ccocceeiieeiieenieenseeeseenns — —  (13,054) —
Gain on sales of shares of Westec Residential Security, Inc. and
Valley Burglar and Fire Alarm Co., INC...coiuiiiiiiiiiiieieeee e — —  (22,828) —
Equity in net income of affiliated companies...... (1,310) (1,131) (839) (10,564)
Minority interest in subsidiaries........ccoooeeiiieiiiiii e, 482 3,837 1,241 3,887
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax (Note 2 (12)) ...ccceeveerveerrvennnnen. 3,699 — — 29,831
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects from acquisitions and disposals:
(Increase) decrease in cash depPOoSItS ....ccceeerrieievirrieree e . 895 6,352 (10,673) 7,218
Increase in receivables and due from subscribers, net of allowances.... (2,010) (23,406) (5,215) (16,210)
(Increase) decrease iN INVENTOTIES .....uuiicireeeiiiriee e 4,029  (26,350) (7,203) 32,492
(Increase) decrease in other current assets..... 6,422 (373) (419) 51,790
Increase (decrease) in payables.......ccccceveeeeennn. (24,279) 27,115 1,480 (195,798)
Increase (decrease) in deposits received.. (3,506) (8,232) 9,529 (28,274)
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue............. 3,788 871 (196) 30,548
Increase (decrease) in accrued iNCOME taxeS.....ccoeerrrieeereriunes 4,249 (3,445) (2,120) 34,266
Increase in guarantee deposits received from subscribers...... 777 669 462 6,266
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities ......ccccoceevveeccie e 1,642 3,060 (343) 13,242
Increase (decrease) in unearned premiums and other insurance liabilities ........ 8,201 (4,226) — 66,137
Increase in investment deposits by policyholders........cccoeiiiiiiiniiinieiiiecieee 54,084 18,571 — 436,161
(@ 14 Y=Y o T S 1,720 1,641 (199) 13,871
Net cash provided by operating activities ......cccocceeviriieeiiniiien e 136,345 69,090 31,231 1,099,556
Cash flows from investing activities:
(Increase) decrease in tiMe dePOSItS .....cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e e e eane 3,976 1,619 (2,117) 32,065
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment........... 955 1,551 1,774 7,702
Payments for purchases of property, plant and equipment..... (51,794) (37,539) (46,332) (417,694)
Proceeds from sales of investment in securities............ccccueee.. 5,663 2,419 606 45,669
Payments for investments in securities ..........ccc..... (19,242) (2,733) (13,214) (155,177)
(Increase) decrease in short-term investments............. (2,478) (26,855) 3,993 (19,984)
Proceeds from sales of subsidiary’s shares (Note 22).......ccccccceuueen.. 1,016 — — 8,194
Proceeds from sales of shares of Secom Techno Service Co., Ltd.............. — 4,512 — —
Proceeds from sales of shares of Tokyo Internet Corporation (Note 22)........cccceeeuueee 1,072 — 11,757 8,645
Proceeds from sales of shares of Westec Residential Security, Inc. and
Valley Burglar and Fire Alarm Co., INC. ...cccvvviiriiiirniee e — — 33,503 —
Acquisition of Mac Corporation, net of cash acquired (Note 5)... (3,203) — — (25,831)
Acquisition of Pasco Corporation, net of cash acquired.........cccccevevvveeecnnes — (9,494) — —
Acquisition of Secom General Insurance Co., Ltd., net of cash acquired.... — — 12,365 —
Increase in short-term receivables, Net.......cccovociiiiieiiieen e (22,815) (1,149) (1,911) (183,992)
Payments for long-term receivables ... (36,555) (24,656) (454) (294,798)
Proceeds from long-term receivables ... 12,415 14,550 311 100,121
Increase in other assets.........ccccceeeeeee... (6,802) (3,406) (2,501) (54,855)
Other, Net ... — 197 1,602 —
Net cash used in iNVesting aCtiVIties ......cuivieiiiiiieeii e (117,792) (80,984) (618) (949,935)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from 1oNg-term debt........ccuiiiiiiiiiiieeee e e 22,031 2,614 7,445 177,669
Repayments of long-term debit......... . (16,102) (4,480) (5,016) (129,855)
Increase (decrease) in bank loans........ (4,516) 17,160 13,908 (36,419)
Proceeds from minority shareholders. 5 5,443 660 40
Dividends paid.....ccccccevviernieiniiiesieeesees s (9,323) (8,147) (7,555) (75,185)
(Increase) decrease in treasury stock, net..... 39 77 (94) 315
(014 T=Y A V=1 OSSOSO (530) — — (4,274)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities.........cccocceerieeriieecieecceeeee. (8,396) 12,667 9,348 (67,709)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ...........c.cc.ccceveverrccernnen. 239 (630) (635) 1,927
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents .............occccoiiiiiii i 10,396 143 39,326 83,839
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . 131,329 131,186 91,860 1,059,105
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ..........cccccceeiiiiiicciiieeiii ¥141,725 ¥131,329 ¥131,186 $1,142,944

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SECOM CO., LTD. and Subsidiaries
Three years ended March 31, 2001

1. Nature of Operations

The parent company and its subsidiaries (collectively “the
Company”) are engaged in security services, medical services,
non-life insurance services, information and communication
related services and other services. The Company’s principal
business activities are security services including on-line central-
ized security services for commercial and residential premises,
as well as large-scale proprietary security services, static guard
services, armored car services for money collection and deposit,
and the development, manufacturing and sale of various secu-
rity equipment.

The Company is focusing on its “Social System Industry”,
a network of integrated systems and services centered on the
fields of security, medical care, non-life insurance, and informa-
tion and communication related services, targeted at the needs
of people and business. To develop this Social System Industry
concept, the Company has been diversifying the operation of
its services covering: home and other medical services; non-life
insurance services; information and communication services
including cyber security services, software development and
system integration activities; Geographic Information System
services using aerial surveying technology; school education
systems; development and sale of real estate and other services.
Moreover, the Company is currently expanding its business into
broadband services using cable television networks through its
affiliated companies.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

The parent company and its Japanese subsidiaries main-
tain their records and prepare their statutory financial state-
ments in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Japan. Certain adjustments and reclassifications
have been incorporated in the accompanying financial state-
ments to conform with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. These adjustments were not
recorded in the statutory books of account.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assump-
tions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Significant accounting policies followed in the preparation
of the accompanying consolidated financial statements are
summarized below:

(1) Basis of Consolidation and Investments in Affiliated
Companies

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
the parent company and those of its majority owned subsidiary
companies. All intercompany transactions and accounts have
been eliminated in consolidation.

Investments in 20 to 50 percent owned companies, in which
the ability to exercise significant influence exists, are accounted
under the equity method. Consolidated income includes the
Company’s current equity in the net income of affiliated
companies, after elimination of intercompany profits.

The excess of cost over underlying identifiable net assets at
acquisition dates of investments in subsidiaries and affiliated
companies is recorded as goodwill.

On occasion, a subsidiary or affiliated company accounted for
using the equity method may issue its shares to third parties
either in a public offering or upon conversion of convertible debt
to common stock at amounts per share in excess of or less than
the Company’s average per share carrying value. With respect to
such transactions, the resulting income or losses arising from
the change in ownership interest are recorded in income for the
year the transaction occurs. With respect to sale of shares of a
subsidiary, the resulting income is recognized to the extent that
the sale of shares is not a part of a broader corporate reorganiza-
tion contemplated or planned by the Company.

(2) Foreign Currency Translation

All asset and liability accounts of foreign subsidiaries and
affiliates are translated into Japanese yen at appropriate year-
end current rates and all income and expense accounts are
translated at average rates of exchange during the year. The
resulting translation adjustments are accumulated and reported
as part of other comprehensive income (loss).

Foreign currency receivables and payables of the Company
are translated into yen at the rate in effect at the balance sheet
date and the resulting translation gains and losses are credited
or charged to income for the year.

(3) Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, the Company
considers all highly liquid investments purchased with initial
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

(4) Investments in Debt and Equity Securities

The Company classifies investments in debt and equity securi-
ties as “available-for-sale” or “held-to-maturity”. The Company
has no securities classified as “trading”. Marketable debt and
equity securities which are classified as “available-for-sale” are
recorded at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses on securities
classified as “available-for-sale” are reported as part of other
comprehensive income (loss), net of tax. Debt securities that
are expected to be “held-to-maturity” are reported at amortized
cost. Other investments in non-public companies are recorded
at cost net of other-than-temporary impairment.

Realized gains or losses on the sale of investments are based
on the moving-average cost method and are credited or charged
to income.
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(5) Inventories

Inventories, consisting of security-related products, real estate,
and information and other related products, are stated at lower
of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined, in the case of
real estate, based on a specific identification method and, in the
case of other inventories, using the moving-average method.

(6) Deferred Insurance Acquisition Costs

Costs that vary with and are primarily related to acquiring
new insurance policies are deferred and are being amortized
principally over the premium-paying period of the related insur-
ance policies applying a percentage relationship of cost incurred
to premiums from contracts issued to applicable unearned
premiums throughout the period of the contract.

(7) Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, including significant better-
ments, are carried at cost. When assets are retired or otherwise
disposed of, the cost and related depreciation are cleared from
the respective accounts and the net difference, less any amounts
realized on disposition, is reflected in income. Depreciation is
computed primarily using the declining-balance method at rates
based on the estimated useful lives of the assets. Depreciation
expense was ¥39,903 million ($321,798 thousand), ¥31,217
million and ¥28,838 million for the years ended March 31, 2001,
2000 and 1999, respectively. Maintenance, repairs and renewals
are charged to income as incurred.

The estimated useful lives of depreciable assets are as follows:
Buildings 22 to 50 years
Security equipment and control stations 5 years
Machinery, equipment and automobiles 3 to 15 years

(8) Telephone and Telegraph Utility Rights

These rights are shown at the net amount of their original cost
less amortization thereof using the straight-line method over a
period of 20 years.

(9) Intangibles and Other

Intangibles, which principally consist of internal-use software,
are amortized on a straight-line basis over their useful lives
which are principally five years. The Company’s long-lived
assets, including goodwill and identifiable intangibles, are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circum-
stances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not
be recoverable.

(10) Unearned Premiums and Other Insurance Liabilities
Unearned premiums are related to unexpired periods of insur-

ance contracts and are earned on a pro-rata basis over the
remaining contract period. Other insurance liabilities consist
principally of liabilities for unpaid claims and adjustment
expenses, which are estimates of payments to be made on
reported claims, and incurred but not reported claims, which
are computed based on past experience for unpaid losses.

(11) Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes is computed based on the pre-
tax income included in the consolidated statements of income.
The asset and liability approach is used to recognize deferred tax
assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of
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temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the
tax bases of assets and liabilities. Valuation allowances are
recorded to reduce deferred tax assets when it is more likely
than not that a tax benefit will not be realized.

(12) Revenue Recognition

During the year ended March 31, 2001, the Company
adopted Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 101, “Revenue
Recognition in Financial Statements” issued by the United
States of America Securities and Exchange Commission
retroactively to April 1, 2000. As a result, the Company has
changed its method of accounting for revenues from installation
services of security equipment. Effective April 1, 2000, revenues
from installation services of security equipment are recognized
over the contractual period of security services after completion
of the installation. The related installation costs are also capital-
ized and amortized over the contractual period. Previously,
installation revenues for security equipment were recognized
when the Company had substantially completed all of its obliga-
tions pursuant to the terms of the installation services contract.
The Company viewed its obligation under the installation ser-
vices contract to be substantially completed when installation
services of security equipment were completed and recognized
revenues at that time.

At April 1, 2000, the Company recorded a one-time non-cash
charge of ¥3,699 million ($29,831 thousand), net of tax, represent-
ing the effect of adoption of SAB No. 101. The charge has been
reflected as a cumulative effect of accounting change in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income. The account-
ing change did not have a material effect on the Company’s con-
solidated statement of income for the year ended March 31, 2001.
The Company has not disclosed pro forma financial information
for prior years as if SAB No. 101 had been applied retroactively
due to immateriality.

Revenue from security services is recognized over the contrac-
tual period or, in the case of specific services, when such services
are performed. Subscribers are generally requested to prepay a
portion of service charges which are credited to deferred revenue
and taken into income ratably over the covered service period.

Merchandise and software sales are recognized when persua-
sive evidence of an arrangement including title transfer exists,
delivery has occurred, the sales price is fixed or determinable,
and collectibility is probable—in the case of installations, when
such installations are completed.

Revenue from long-term contracts for Geographic Information
System services is recognized under the percentage-of-
completion method.

Property and casualty insurance premiums are earned ratably
over the terms of the related insurance contracts. Unearned
premiums are earned ratably over the terms of the unexpired
portion of premiums written.

(13) Research and Development
Research and development costs are charged to income as
incurred.

(14) Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are charged to income as incurred, except for
the costs related to insurance policies. Advertising costs for
acquiring new insurance policies are deferred and amortized



as part of insurance acquisition costs. Advertising expenses
included in selling, general and administrative expenses for the
years ended March 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were ¥4,864 million
($39,226 thousand), ¥4,263 million and ¥4,215 million, respectively.

(15) Derivative Financial Instruments—Interest Rate Swap
Agreements

The Company enters into interest rate swap agreements in
order to limit the Company’s exposure to loss in relation to
underlying debt instruments resulting from adverse fluctuations
in interest rates or to provide higher interest income to the
Company. The related interest differentials paid or received
under these agreements are recognized over the terms of the
agreements in interest expense.

(16) Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings per Share (“EPS”) is computed based on the
average number of shares of common stock outstanding for the
period. Diluted EPS assumes the dilution that could occur if
securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exer-
cised or converted into common stock, or resulted in the issuance
of common stock. Basic and diluted EPS for prior years are
restated to reflect the stock split.

(17) Free Distribution of Common Stock

A corporation in Japan may make free distributions of its
common stock to shareholders at the discretion of its Board of
Directors. Free share distributions are accounted for either by (i)
a transfer equal to par value or more from additional paid-in
capital to the common stock account, or (ii) issuance of new
shares without any change in the common stock account if the
common stock account exceeds the aggregate par value of all
issued shares including the newly issued shares. Such free share
distributions are clearly distinguished from “stock dividends”
which, under the Japanese Commercial Code, as amended effec-
tive April 1, 1991, are effected by an appropriation of retained
earnings to the common stock account by a resolution of the
shareholders and an issuance of additional shares by way of a
stock split with respect to the amount appropriated by resolution
of the Board of Directors.

A corporation in the United States of America issuing shares,
comparable to less than 25 percent free share distributions,
would be required to account for them as stock dividends and the
fair value of the shares would be transferred from retained earn-
ings to the appropriate capital accounts. Such transfers, however,
would have no effect on total shareholders’ equity (Note 21).

Free distributions of common stock are included in the EPS
calculation in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

(18) Recent Pronouncements

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”) No. 133 “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities”. In June 2000, the FASB also issued SFAS
No. 138, “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and
Certain Hedging Activities, an amendment of FASB Statement
No. 133".

Both standards establish accounting reporting standards for deriva-
tive instruments and for hedging activities, and require that an entity
recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the balance
sheet and measure those instruments at fair value. SFAS No. 133, as
amended, and No. 138 are effective for fiscal years beginning after
June 15, 2000. The Company adopted SFAS No. 133 and No. 138 at
April 1, 2001. The cumulative effect adjustment upon the adoption of
SFAS No. 133 and No. 138, net of related income tax effect, resulted in
an increase to other comprehensive income of approximately ¥129
million ($1,040 thousand), and was immaterial to net income.

In September 2000, the FASB issued SFAS No. 140, “Account-
ing for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguish-
ments of Liabilities—a replacement of FASB Statements No. 125”.
This statement revises the standards for accounting for securiti-
zations and other transfers of financial assets and collateral and
requires certain financial statement disclosures. This statement is
effective for transactions occurring after March 31, 2001 and is
effective for the recognition and reclassification of collateral and
disclosures relating to securitization transactions and collateral
for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2000. The adoption of
this replacement standard is not anticipated to have a material
effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position and
results of operations.

(19) Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications of previously reported amounts have
been made to conform with current classifications.

3. U.S. Dollar Amounts

U.S. dollar amounts have been included in these financial
statements solely for convenience of the reader. These
translations should not be construed as representing that the yen
amounts actually represent, or have been or could be converted
into U.S. dollars. The translations of yen into U.S. dollars have
been made at the rate at March 31, 2001, ¥124=US$1.

4. Reconciliation of the Differences between Basic and
Diluted Net Income Per Share (“EPS")

Basic and diluted EPS as well as the number of shares in the fol-
lowing table are restated for the year ended March 31, 1999 to
reflect the two-for-one stock split that became effective on
November 19, 1999. Reconciliation of the differences between
basic and diluted EPS for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2000
and 1999 is as follows:

In millions Thousands InU.S.
of yen of shares Inyen dollars

Income before
cumulative
effect of
accounting Weighted-
change  average shares EPS

For the year ended March 31, 2001:
Basic EPS—
Income before cumulative effect
of accounting change.................. ¥47,817 233,081 ¥205.15 $1.65
Effect of dilutive securities— -
Convertible bonds........ccccccveernnene 5 211
Diluted EPS—
Income before cumulative effect
of accounting change for
diluted EPS computation............ ¥47,822 233,292 ¥204.99 $1.65
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In millions Thousands

of yen of shares Inyen
Income before
cumulative
effect of
accounting Weighted-
change  average shares EPS
For the year ended March 31, 2000:
Basic EPS—
Income before cumulative effect
of accounting change........ccoeeveveninenne. ¥47,432 232,883 ¥203.67
Effect of dilutive securities—
Convertible bonds ......c.ccccevvvvvveveceseinenne 9 220
Diluted EPS—
Income before cumulative effect
of accounting change for
diluted EPS computation ........cccceeeeeennee ¥47,441 233,103 ¥203.52
For the year ended March 31, 1999:
Basic EPS—
Income before cumulative effect
of accounting change ......c.ccccovrcccninnnee ¥49,918 232,700 ¥214.51
Effect of dilutive securities—
Convertible bonds ........cccceeevvvveveceseinenens 9 510
Diluted EPS—
Income before cumulative effect
of accounting change for
diluted EPS computation ......c..ccceceeeneeeee ¥49,927 233,210 ¥214.09

5. Acquisitions

In September 1998 and March 1999, the parent company sub-
scribed, in two installments, to purchase new shares issued by
Secom Toyo General Insurance Co., Ltd. (renamed in 2000 to
Secom General Insurance Co., Ltd. “Secom Insurance”), a non-life
insurance company in Japan, for an aggregate amount of ¥9,029
million ($72,815 thousand). As a result, the parent company owns
81.7 percent of the outstanding shares of Secom Insurance at
March 31, 2001.

In August 1999, the parent company subscribed to purchase
new shares issued by Pasco Corporation (“Pasco”), which oper-
ates an aerial surveying and mapping business and Geographic
Information System services in Japan, for an aggregate amount
of ¥15,000 million ($120,968 thousand). As a result, the parent
company owns 70.0 percent of the outstanding shares of Pasco
at March 31, 2001.

In December 2000, the parent company acquired all issued
shares of Mac Corporation, which engages in sales and mainte-
nance services for medical equipment, for an aggregate amount
of ¥3,980 million ($32,097 thousand).

The acquisitions referred to above have been accounted for
under the purchase method of accounting, and the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the acquired companies have been
recorded at their fair value at the date of acquisition. The results
of their operations have been included in the consolidated state-
ments of income since the date of acquisition of the majority of
outstanding shares. The difference between the purchase price
and the value assigned to the underlying net assets acquired is
included in goodwill and amounted to ¥10,127 million ($81,669
thousand) and ¥5,768 million at March 31, 2001 and 2000, respec-
tively. The goodwill is being amortized on a straight-line basis
over periods not exceeding 10 years.

The consolidated pro forma information that would show the
results of the Company’s consolidated operations for the years
ended March 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 has not been disclosed
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based on materiality considerations. The effort to provide
comparative pro forma financial information would not be
commensurate with the benefits derived from such information.

6. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at March 31, 2001 and 2000 were

comprised as follows:
In thousands of

In millions of yen U.S. dollars

March 31 March 31

2001 2000 2001

[OF=T- TS .. ¥ 64,819 ¥ 67,902 $ 522,734
Time deposits .. . 21,944 35,203 176,968
(O 111N Fe Y=Y s IP S 35,690 11,000 287,823
Investment securities..........cceeeeenn.nn 19,272 17,224 155,419

¥141,725 ¥131,329 $1,142,944

Investment securities include marketable bonds of the
Japanese government and deposits with financial institutions,
most of which are held for safekeeping in the name of the
relevant company by financial institutions such as banks and
securities companies. These agreements mature within three
months and the carrying values approximate market. The
Company has never experienced any losses through default of
the financial institutions and does not anticipate any default on
agreements outstanding.

7. Cash Deposits

The Company operates cash collection and deposit services for
banks relating to cash dispensers outside of bank facilities. Cash
deposit balances, mostly in cash dispensers, of ¥36,597 million
($295,137 thousand) and ¥37,492 million at March 31, 2001 and
2000, respectively, are segregated from cash and cash equiva-
lents and are restricted as to use by the Company. The Company
funds most of the necessary cash through bank overdraft facili-
ties with the related banks. Bank loans included ¥20,157 million
($162,556 thousand) and ¥23,454 million at March 31, 2001 and
2000, respectively, relating to this operation. As part of its fee
arrangement for such services, the Company is reimbursed for
the interest cost of the related overdrafts.

8. Short-Term Investments and Investment Securities
Short-term investments (current) and investment securities
(non-current) include debt and equity securities. The related
aggregate fair value, gross unrealized gains, gross unrealized
losses and cost pertaining to “available-for-sale” and “held-to-
maturity” investments at March 31, 2001 and 2000 were as

follows:
In millions of yen

March 31, 2001

Gross unrealized

Cost Gains Losses Fair value
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities ........ ¥ 63,883 ¥8,950 ¥10,643 ¥ 62,190
Debt securities ........... 54,168 568 933 53,803
Total v ¥118,051 ¥9,518 ¥11,576 ¥115,993
Held-to-maturity:
Debt securities ........... ¥ 20,000 ¥ 223 ¥ — ¥ 20,223




In millions of yen
March 31, 2000

Gross unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair value

Available-for-sale:

Equity securities ........ ¥ 48,499  ¥40,796 ¥7,159 ¥ 82,136

Debt securities ........... 62,702 849 1,523 62,028
Total coeeveeeieeeeeee ¥111,201 ¥41,645 ¥8,682 ¥144,164
Held-to-maturity:

Debt securities ........... ¥ 20,000 Y 836 ¥ — ¥ 20,836

In thousands of U.S. dollars
March 31, 2001

Gross unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair value

Available-for-sale:
Equity securities ........ $515,185 $72,177 $85,830 $501,532
Debt securities ........... 436,839 4,580 7,524 433,895

$952,024 $76,757 $93,354 $935,427

Held-to-maturity:
Debt securities ........... $161,290 $ 1,799 $ —  $163,089

At March 31, 2001, debt securities principally consisted of
short-term investments in monetary trusts, Japanese govern-
ment bonds, corporate bonds, U.S. treasury securities and U.S.
Government Agency Bonds.

In September 2000, the parent company contributed certain
marketable equity securities, not including those of its sub-
sidiaries and affiliated companies, to an employee retirement
benefit trust, with no cash proceeds thereon. The fair value of
these securities at the time of contribution was ¥21,550 million
($173,790 thousand). Upon contribution of these securities, net
unrealized gains amounting to ¥21,366 million ($172,306 thou-
sand) were realized and included in the consolidated statement
of income for the year ended March 31, 2001.

The cost and fair value of “available-for-sale” and "held-to-
maturity” debt securities by contractual maturity at March 31,

2001 are as follows:
In millions of yen

March 31, 2001
Held-to-maturity

Available-for-sale

Cost Fair value Cost Fair value
Due within 1 year ......... ¥22,132 ¥21,993 ¥ — ¥ —
Due after 1 year
through 5 years........... 20,883 20,653 10,000 10,097
Due after 5 years
through 10 years......... 6,378 6,355 —_ —_
Due after 10 years ....... 4,775 4,802 10,000 10,126
¥54,168 ¥53,803 ¥20,000 ¥20,223
In thousands of U.S. dollars
March 31, 2001
Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity
Cost Fair value Cost Fair value
Due within 1 year ......... $178,484 $177,363 $ — $ —
Due after 1 year
through 5 years........... 168,411 166,556 80,645 81,427
Due after 5 years
through 10 years........ 51,436 51,250 —_ —
Due after 10 years ....... 38,508 38,726 80,645 81,662

$436,839 $433,895 $161,290 $163,089

During the years ended March 31, 2001 and 2000, the net
unrealized gain on “available-for-sale” securities included as
part of other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax, decreased
by ¥19,601 million ($158,072 thousand) and increased by ¥4,204
million, respectively.

Proceeds from the sale of “available-for-sale” securities for
the years ended March 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were ¥3,749 mil-
lion ($30,234 thousand), ¥17,561 million and ¥1,282 million,
respectively. On those sales, the gross realized gains and gross
realized losses, using specifically identified moving-average cost
basis, for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were

as follows:
In thousands of

In millions of yen U.S. dollars

Years ended Year ended

March 31 March 31

2001 2000 1999 2001

Gross realized gains...... ¥1,491 ¥6,993 ¥350 $12,024
Gross realized losses..... 255 239 690 2,056

The Company maintains long-term investment securities,
included as investment securities, issued by a number of
non-public companies. The aggregate carrying amount of the
investments in non-public companies, at cost net of other-than-
temporary impairment, was ¥5,438 million ($43,856 thousand)
and ¥4,619 million at March 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The
corresponding fair value at that date was not computed as such
estimation was not practicable.

9. Inventories

Inventories principally consist of operational equipment
and certain merchandise, including security-related products,
software and real estate for sale.

Inventories at March 31, 2001 and 2000 comprise as follows:

In thousands of

In millions of yen U.S. dollars

March 31 March 31

2001 2000 2001

Security-related products ¥ 7,672 ¥ 6,390 $ 61,871

Real estate.......ccccuvveeeeiccciiieeee e 36,222 40,459 292,113
Information and other-related

ProdUCES .eeveeeeiciree e 5,819 5,551 46,927

¥49,713  ¥52,400 $400,911

Work in process real estate inventories at March 31, 2001 and
2000, amounting to ¥33,731 million ($272,024 thousand) and
¥34,848 million, respectively, are included in real estate.

10. Investments in Affiliated Companies

The Company has investments in affiliates that are accounted
for under the equity method. The principal investments are
Nohmi Bosai Ltd., a 28.6 percent owned affiliate, which is
Japan’s largest manufacturer of fire alarms and listed on the
First Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange; Taiwan Secom Co.,
Ltd., a 24.9 percent owned affiliate, which is listed on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corp.; S1 Corporation, a 24.7 percent owned
affiliate, which is listed on the Korea Stock Exchange; Japan
Image Communications Co., Ltd., a 29.8 percent owned affiliate;
Musashino-Mitaka Cable Television Inc., a 39.0 percent owned
affiliate; and Japan Cablenet Holdings Limited, a 23.0 percent
owned affiliate.
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Summarized financial information regarding the affiliated
companies accounted for under the equity method was

as follows:
In thousands of

In millions of yen U.S. dollars

March 31 March 31

2001 2000 2001

Current asSetS......uuuereeereeereereeereeennnns ¥112,313 ¥ 81,472 $ 905,750

Non-current assetsS.......cccceeeeeereeeneen. 103,998 99,435 838,694

Total assets ....cccvvceevreiieeisiieeiinns ¥216,311 ¥180,907 $1,744,444

Current liabilities .......eeveeereeeeeeeeeennnns ¥ 65,492 ¥ 55,994 $ 528,162

Non-current liabilities .........cccueueen. 35,964 40,427 290,032

Shareholders’ equity.....ccccoceeeiueenne 114,855 84,486 926,250
Total liabilities and

shareholders’ equity........cccueuee ¥216,311 ¥180,907  $1,744,444

In thousands of

In millions of yen U.S. dollars

Years ended Year ended

March 31 March 31

2001 2000 1999 2001

Net sales.....ccvvrrineniennn ¥150,005 ¥163,882 ¥155,293 $1,209,718

Gross profit.....cccceeceeenns ¥ 42,441 ¥ 42,617 ¥ 38,722 $ 342,266

Net income.....c.coeeecuvveenns ¥ 4318 ¥ 5641 ¥ 3,943 $ 34,823

Dividends received from affiliated companies for the years
ended March 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were ¥419 million ($3,379
thousand), ¥371 million and ¥154 million, respectively.

Among the affiliated companies accounted for using the
equity method, the stocks of three companies carried at equity
of ¥19,372 million ($156,226 thousand) and ¥18,729 million at
March 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, had a quoted market
value of ¥28,397 million ($229,008 thousand) and ¥40,045 million
at March 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The unamortized amounts of goodwill were included in the
carrying amount of investments in affiliated companies under
the equity method. The unamortized amount of goodwill, ¥187
million ($1,508 thousand) and ¥136 million at March 31, 2001
and 2000, respectively, is being amortized on a straight-line
basis over periods not exceeding 10 years.

A summary of transactions and balances with the affiliated
companies accounted for using the equity method is presented

below:
In thousands of

In millions of yen U.S. dollars
Years ended Year ended
March 31 March 31
2001 2000 1999 2001
Sales..coveieiieeeeeee e, ¥1,637 ¥1,748 ¥1,394 $13,202
Purchases......cccccceeevennee ¥9,764 ¥6,984 ¥1,692 $78,742
In thousands of
In millions of yen U.S. dollars
March 31 March 31
2001 2000 2001
Notes and accounts
receivable, trade......c.cccccuveeeeeeennne ¥ 860 ¥ 914 $ 6,935
Loan receivables......cc.cccccvervverennnnn. ¥ 119 ¥ 647 $ 960
Notes and accounts
payable.....ccoieiee s ¥2,931 ¥ 2,883 $23,637
Guarantees for
bank 10aNns.....ccccccevveeiviien e ¥9,406 ¥10,499 $75,855
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11. Bank Loans and Long-Term Debt

Bank loans of ¥72,527 million ($584,895 thousand) at March
31, 2001 are represented generally by 90 to 365 day notes with
interest rates ranging from 0.58 to 1.8 percent per annum. Sub-
stantially all of these loans are with banks. The Company has
entered into basic agreements with these banks that state that,
with respect to all present or future loans with such banks, collat-
eral (including sums on deposit with such banks) or guarantors
shall be provided immediately upon request. Further, any collat-
eral furnished pursuant to such agreements or otherwise will be
applicable to all indebtedness to such banks. The Company has
never been requested to submit such additional security.

Long-term debt at March 31, 2001 and 2000 was comprised of

the following:
In thousands of

In millions of yen U.S. dollars
March 31 March 31
2001 2000 2001
Loans, principally from banks due
2001 to 2016 with interest rates
ranging from 0.00 to 6.60%:

SeCUred .coooveeeieeiieeiieeieee e ¥12,587 ¥ 3,962 $101,508
Unsecured......ccceeeveeeeeeeeveeeeeeeeeenens 5,038 4,185 40,629

1.60% convertible bonds due 2002,

convertible currently at ¥2,667.8

($21.51) for one common share,

redeemable before due date......... 500 521 4,032
1.60% convertible bonds due 2004,

convertible currently at ¥2,372.4

($19.13) for one common share,

redeemable before due date......... 18 57 145
1.85% notes due 2002 5,000 5,000 40,323
2.05% notes due 2003 5,000 5,000 40,323
Obligations under capital leases,

due 2001 to 2026 (Note 18)........... 10,273 10,589 82,846

38,416 29,314 309,806

Less: Portion due within
(o] g L= IAVZ=T: | o 14,351 5,715 115,734
¥24,065 ¥23,599 $194,072

Property, plant and equipment with a carrying amount of
¥6,405 million ($51,653 thousand), inventories with a carrying
amount of ¥29,287 million ($236,185 thousand) and investment
securities with a carrying amount of ¥586 million ($4,726 thou-
sand) were pledged as collateral for short-term and long-term
debt at March 31, 2001.

The Company has no compensating balance arrangements
with any lending bank. However, as is the customary practice in
Japan, the Company had time deposits aggregating ¥1,043 mil-
lion ($8,411 thousand) with such banks at March 31, 2001.

The convertible bonds can be converted into common stock at
any time by the bondholders. Under the terms of each subscrip-
tion and underwriting agreement for convertible bonds, the con-
version price of convertible bonds is subject to adjustment in
certain instances, such as for stock dividends, stock split or free
distributions of common stock, and an acceleration clause may
be invoked if the Company experiences ordinary losses (as
defined in each agreement) for three consecutive years.



Under the terms of the agreement for the 1.60 percent con-
vertible bonds due 2002, the cumulative amount of cash divi-
dends may not exceed ¥3,500 million ($28,226 thousand) plus
the aggregate amount of ordinary income after income taxes (as
defined in the agreement) of the Company, beginning with the
fiscal year ended November 30, 1987.

An acceleration clause and limitation of cash dividends will
not be applied if the Company provides collateral which is
accepted by the trustees.

Under the terms of the agreements for the 1.60 percent
convertible bonds due 2002, a sinking fund payment is required.

The aggregate annual maturities and sinking fund requirements
on long-term debt after March 31, 2001 are as follows:

In thousands of

Years ending March 31 In millions of yen U.S. dollars
2002 ¥14,351 $115,734
2003 8,659 69,830
2004 ... 9,466 76,339

866 6,984

403 3,250
Later YEArS v eeceeeeee e e e 4,671 37,669

¥38,416 $309,806

12. Insurance-Related Operations

Secom Insurance maintains accounting records as noted in
Note 2 in accordance with the accounting principles and
practices prescribed by the Supervisory Authorities in Japan,
which vary in some respects from accounting principles gener-
ally accepted in the United States of America. Those differences
are principally, (a) that insurance acquisition costs are charged to
income when incurred in Japan whereas in the U.S. those costs
are deferred and amortized generally over the premium-paying
period of the insurance policies, (b) that liabilities related to
incurred but not reported claims are computed based on related
regulations in Japan whereas in the U.S. those liabilities are com-
puted based on past experience for unreported losses, and (c)
that unearned premiums are calculated based on the documents
authorized by the Supervisory Authorities in Japan whereas in
the U.S. unearned premiums are reflected based on the lapse
and surrender over the contract period.

In addition, under certain property and casualty insurance con-
tracts with a refund clause and long-term insurance policies that
provide refunds at maturity, such as personal injury and fire, the
policyholder receives a refund if premiums have been fully paid
unless a substantial settlement (as defined in the policy) has
occurred. The Company has provided for such refundable
amounts by classifying a portion of the net premiums written,
together with interest thereon, as investment deposits by policy-
holders. Contract and policy terms are principally five years.

For purposes of preparing the consolidated financial state-
ments, appropriate adjustments have been made to reflect such
items in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

The amount of net equity of Secom Insurance at March 31,
2001 and 2000 was ¥21,426 million ($172,790 thousand) and
¥25,175 million, respectively.

13. Pension and Severance Costs

Employees of the parent company and its Japanese sub-
sidiaries whose services are terminated are, under most
circumstances, entitled to lump-sum severance indemnities or
eligible for pension benefits. Lump-sum severance indemnities
are provided for employees with three to 10 service years and
determined by reference to current basic rates of pay, length of
service and conditions under which the termination occurs.

The parent company and certain Japanese subsidiaries
maintain a contributory defined benefit welfare pension plan,
covering substantially all of their employees. The pension
benefits thereunder are determined by reference to current basic
rates of pay, length of service and conditions under which the
termination occurs. The welfare pension plan is funded in con-
formity with the funding requirements of the Japanese Welfare
Pension Insurance Law.

To supplement the above welfare pension plan, the parent
company and its major Japanese subsidiaries act as trustees for
non-contributory defined benefit pension plans which cover sub-
stantially all of the eligible employees having 10 years or more
of service. The benefits are in the form of lump-sum and/or pen-
sion payments and are determined by formula based upon
length of service and age at time of termination. The Company
contributes amounts required to maintain sufficient plan assets
to provide for accrued benefits, subject to limitations on
deductibility imposed by Japanese income tax laws.

Net pension and severance costs under Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting
for Pensions” for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

were as follows:
In thousands of

In millions of yen U.S. dollars
Years ended Year ended
March 31 March 31
2001 2000 1999 2001
Net pension and severance
costs (credit):
Service cost . ¥6,898 ¥5,638 ¥5,413 $ 55,629
Interest cost 3,755 3,390 2,952 30,282
Expected return on
plan assets......ccccvecveeeennnn. (3,962) (2,712) (2,463) (31,952)
Amortization of
transition assets........cccueeun. (46) (46) (46) (371)
Amortization of prior
service cost (benefit).......... (37) 105 105 (298)
Recognized actuarial loss.... 606 804 1,200 4,887
Net periodic benefit cost......... ¥7,214 ¥7,179 ¥ 7,161 $ 58,177
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The changes in benefit obligation and plan assets, funded The assumptions used in computing the information above
status and composition of amount recognized in the consoli- are as follows:
dated balance sheet were as follows:

March 31
In thousands of 2001 2000 1999
In millions of yen U.S. dollars -
Discount rate......cccceeeveeeeeiieeeeiieeeeieeeene 3.0% 3.5% 3.5%
Years ended Year ended
March 31 March 31 Expected long-term rate of
2001 2000 return on plan assets........cccoceeveenns 4.0% 5.0% 4.0%

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation

at beginning of year........ccceceeuneee. ¥109,529 ¥ 94,376
Benefit obligation for Pasco

at the date of acquisition............... — 5,839
Y=Y VA ToT= o1 o 1) S 6,898 5,638
Interest CoSt ..oovvummmineniiriieeeee e 3,755 3,390
Plan participants’ contributions..... 1,266 2,087

Actuarial loss
Amendments
Benefits paid

14,427 582
(2,049) —
(2,739) (2,383)

Benefit obligation
atend of year.....cccevvceercvieescienennn 131,087 109,529

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets

at beginning of year........ccccceeuueen. 86,948 64,030
Fair value of plan assets for
Pasco at the date of acquisition ... — 2,927
Actual return on plan assets........... (16,179) 14,584
Employer contribution.................... 25,938 5,403
Plan participants’ contributions...... 1,266 2,087
Benefits paid (2,254) (2,083)
Fair value of plan assets
atend of year.....cccceevceeeccveeccnnen, 95,719 86,948
Funded status.....ccceeeeeriiireenieiieeeeennnns 35,368 22,5681
Unrecognized actuarial loss.............. (45,048) (11,085)
Unrecognized transition assets ........ 181 227
Unrecognized prior service
benefit (COSt)..uovvriiriiiniiiiiiieeee 1,266 (746)

Net amount recognized (¥ 8,233)¥ 10,977

Amounts recognized in
the consolidated balance sheets

consist of:
Accrued pension and
SEVEerance COStS ...cccvevvevuieeriniieennnns ¥ 21,340 ¥ 12,293
Intangible assets.... (124) —
Accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss)...... (29,449) (1,316)
Net amount recognized..........ccceeeunee (¥ 8,233)¥ 10,977
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Long-term rate of salary increase........ 2.2-35% 2.7-2.8% 2.5-2.8%

The plan assets consist principally of corporate equity securities,
government securities and corporate debt securities.

The provisions of SFAS No. 87 require recognition in the
balance sheets of an additional minimum pension liability and
related intangible assets for pension plans with an accumulated
benefit obligation in excess of plan assets. The additional mini-
mum pension liability which exceeded the unrecognized prior
service cost was recorded as a component of accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss), net of tax, of ¥17,110 million
($137,984 thousand) and ¥765 million at March 31, 2001 and
2000, respectively.

The projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obliga-
tion and fair value of plan assets for the pension plan with
accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets were
¥131,087 million ($1,057,153 thousand), ¥114,622 million
($924,371 thousand) and ¥95,719 million ($771,927 thousand),
respectively, at March 31, 2001, and ¥109,529 million, ¥95,115
million and ¥86,948 million, respectively, at March 31, 2000.

As discussed in Note 8, in September 2000, the parent company
contributed certain marketable equity securities to an employee
retirement benefit trust, which is included in plan assets.

Most subsidiaries outside Japan have various retirement
plans, which are primarily defined contribution plans, covering
substantially all of their employees. The funding policy for the
defined contribution plans is to annually contribute an amount
equal to a certain percent of the participants’ annual salaries.
The contributions to the defined contribution pension plans for
the years ended March 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were ¥19 million
($153 thousand), ¥25 million and ¥19 million, respectively.

14. Exchange Gains and Losses

Interest and other revenue for the year ended March 31, 2001
include net exchange gains of ¥313 million ($2,524 thousand). Other
expenses for the years ended March 31, 2000 and 1999 include net
exchange losses of ¥631 million and ¥178 million, respectively.



15. Income Taxes
Total income taxes for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2000

and 1999 were allocated as follows:
In thousands of

In millions of yen U.S. dollars
Years ended Year ended
March 31 March 31
2001 2000 1999 2001
INCOME...ueiireiieeeeee s ¥ 35,670 ¥22,669 ¥32,373 $ 287,661
Cumulative effect of
accounting change ....... (3,528) — — (28,452)

Shareholders’ equity—
accumulated other
comprehensive
income (loss):
Net unrealized gain
(loss) in debt and
equity securities......... (13,419) 3,070 5,367 (108,218)
Additional minimum
pension liabilities
adjustments............... (11,788) 5,809 815 (95,064)
¥ 6,935 ¥31,548 ¥38,555 $ 55,927

The Company is subject to a number of different income taxes
which, in the aggregate, indicate a statutory tax rate in Japan of
approximately 41.9 percent for the years ended March 31, 2001
and 2000, and approximately 47.5 percent for the year ended
March 31, 1999, respectively.

Reconciliations of the differences between income taxes
computed at statutory tax rates and consolidated income tax

expense were as follows:
In thousands of

In millions of yen U.S. dollars

Years ended Year ended

March 31 March 31

2001 2000 1999 2001

Income taxes computed
at statutory tax rate of
41.9% in 2001 and 2000,
47.5% in 1999.......c.cc..... ¥34,634 ¥30,506 ¥39,279 $279,306
Increase (decrease)
resulting from:
Unrecognized tax
benefits from
subsidiaries in loss
pPOSItions ...cceeeeieennee 1,176 1,344 1,936 9,484
Reversal of valuation
allowance due
to utilization of
operating loss
carryforwards............ (2,504) (8,689) (8,713) (20,194)
Amortization of
non-deductible
goodWill....ceeeeeriines 699 118 1,213 5,637
Effect of change in
normal statutory tax

rate in Japan.............. — — (4) —

Other, net.....ccccccueeennes 1,665 (610) (1,338) 13,428
Consolidated

income taxes ......... ¥35,670 ¥22,669 ¥32,373 $287,661

The significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities
at March 31, 2001 and 2000 were as follows:

In thousands of

In millions of yen U.S. dollars
March 31 March 31
2001 2000 2001
Deferred tax assets:
Loss carryforwards......c.ccccceeeunnenn ¥20,965 ¥22,331 $169,073
Accrued pension and
SEeVerance COStS .......cccvvvneerieenns 17,327 2,752 139,734
Deferred revenue......cccoceeeeeeennneee 11,076 — 89,323
Intercompany profit.......cccceevene 3,961 4,560 31,943
Insurance reserve .......coccceeeeeeennes 1,300 3,244 10,484
Research and development
EXPENSES wevvvreierrreeereessinerereeenns 1,213 1,707 9,782
Enterprise and state income
1,575 1,273 12,702
1,209 1,823 9,750
1,728 1,070 13,935
1,594 882 12,855
388 305 3,129
3,723 2,894 30,024
Gross deferred tax assets ....... 66,059 42,841 532,734
Less: Valuation allowance....... (19,764) (19,841) (159,387)
Total deferred tax assets......... 46,295 23,000 373,347
Deferred tax liabilities:
Gain on securities contribution
to employee retirement
benefit trust......ccccceeeeveeeeeireeens (8,952) — (72,193)
Deferred installation costs.......... (7,404) — (59,710)
Unrealized gain on securities...... (2,621) (16,114) (21,137)
Unearned premiums and other
insurance liabilities.................... (1,235) (3,917) (9,960)
Reversal of securities
devaluation .... ... (1,558) (1,659) (12,565)
[ Y=Y (1,303) (1,547) (10,508)
Gross deferred tax liabilities... (23,073) (23,237) (186,073)
Net deferred tax assets
(liabilities) ...ccoeeeeceeeeeceeeeeeee, ¥23,222 (¥ 237) $187,274

The valuation allowance principally relates to deferred tax
assets of the subsidiaries with operating loss carryforwards, for
tax purposes, that are not expected to be realized. The net change
in the total valuation allowance for the year ended March 31,
2001 was a decrease of ¥77 million ($621 thousand).

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, the
Company management considers whether it is more likely than
not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be
realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is depen-
dent upon the generation of future taxable income during the
periods in which those temporary differences become deductible.
The Company management considered the scheduled reversal of
deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax
planning strategies in making this assessment. Based upon the
level of historical taxable income and projections for future tax-
able income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets
are deductible, the Company management believes it is more
likely than not that the Company will realize the benefits of these
deductible differences, net of the existing valuation allowance
at March 31, 2001 and 2000.
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No deferred income taxes have been provided on undistributed
earnings of overseas subsidiaries totaling ¥2,359 million ($19,024
thousand) at March 31, 2001 because they are not expected to be
remitted in the foreseeable future.

At March 31, 2001, tax loss carryforwards of domestic sub-
sidiaries amounted to ¥47,162 million ($380,339 thousand)
and are available for offset against future taxable earnings of
such subsidiaries for up to five years as follows:

In thousands of

Expires in the years ending March 31 In millions of yen U.S. dollars
2002 .. ¥ 5,373 $ 43,331
2003 . 2,332 18,806
2004 ... 35,388 285,387
1,937 15,621
2,132 17,194

¥47,162 $380,339

The tax loss carryforwards of overseas subsidiaries at March 31,
2001 amounted to ¥6,007 million ($48,444 thousand), a part of
which will begin to expire in the year 2002.

16. Shareholders’ Equity
(1) Stock Split

On September 14, 1999, the Board of Directors approved a
two-for-one stock split on the Company’s common stock, which
was distributed on November 19, 1999, to shareholders of record
on September 30, 1999. The number of shares issued was
116,409,647. There was no increase in the common stock
account because the new shares were distributed from the por-
tion of previously issued shares accounted for as excess of par
value in the common stock account in accordance with the
Japanese Commercial Code.

(2) Retained Earnings

The Japanese Commercial Code provides that an amount equal
to at least 10 percent of cash dividends and other distributions
from retained earnings paid in cash by the parent company and
its Japanese subsidiaries be appropriated as a legal reserve until
such reserve equals 25 percent of the common stock account. The
only changes in the legal reserve during the years ended March
31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 consisted of such appropriations made by
the parent company and its Japanese subsidiaries.

The Japanese Commercial Code requires that dividends at
year end, which the Board of Directors resolved to declare cus-
tomarily in the first month following year end, be approved at
the general shareholders’ meeting to be held within three
months after the end of accounting period.

Subsequent to March 31, 2001, the Company’s Board of
Directors declared an annual cash dividend of ¥9,324 million
($75,194 thousand) to shareholders of record on March 31, 2001.
The dividend declared is subject to approval at the general
shareholders’ meeting scheduled for June 28, 2001. Dividends
are recorded in the period they are declared.
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(3) Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

An analysis of the changes in accumulated other comprehen-
sive income (loss) for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2000 and
1999 is as follows:

In millions of yen

Tax
Pre-tax  (expense) Net-of-tax
amount  or benefit amount

For the year ended March 31, 2001:
Unrealized gain (loss) on securities—
Unrealized holding loss
arising during the period.............. (¥10,490) ¥ 3,994 (¥ 6,496)
Less: Reclassification
adjustment for gain

included in net income........ (22,530) 9,425 (13,105)
Minimum pension
liabilities adjustments......c.c..ccccvveeens (28,133) 11,788 (16,345)
Foreign currency
translation adjustments................... 4,670 — 4,670
Other comprehensive
income (10SS) ....uuuvveereeereeereerreennnns (¥56,483) ¥25,207 (¥31,276)

For the year ended March 31, 2000:
Unrealized gain on securities—
Unrealized holding gain
arising during the period.............. ¥ 8,436 (¥ 3,657) ¥ 4,879
Less: Reclassification
adjustment for gain

included in net income........ (1,162) 487 (675)
Minimum pension
liabilities adjustments.........ccceeveneen. 13,863 (5,809) 8,054
Foreign currency
translation adjustments..........ccc..... (5,638) — (5,638)
Other comprehensive
iNcome (10SS) .uuvvevieiceeiieeiieeiiieees ¥15,499 (¥ 8,879) ¥ 6,620

For the year ended March 31, 1999:
Unrealized gain on securities—
Unrealized holding gain
arising during the period.............. ¥11,381 (¥ 5,381) ¥ 6,000
Less: Reclassification
adjustment for gain

included in net income........ (29) 14 (15)
Minimum pension

liabilities adjustments.........ccccecueeee (73) (815) (888)

Foreign currency
translation adjustments..........cccuueen (4,832) — (4,832)
Other comprehensive
income (10SS) ...uceeiiiireeeiiiiiieirennns ¥ 6,447 (¥ 6,182) ¥ 265
In thousands of U.S. dollars
Tax
Pre-tax (expense) Net-of-tax
amount  or benefit amount

For the year ended March 31, 2001:
Unrealized gain (loss) on securities—
Unrealized holding loss
arising during the period.............. ($ 84,597) $ 32,210 ($ 52,387)
Less: Reclassification
adjustment for gain

included in net income........ (181,693) 76,008 (105,685)
Minimum pension
liabilities adjustments.........cccceeueeee. (226,879) 95,064 (131,815)
Foreign currency
translation adjustments...........cc..... 37,661 — 37,661
Other comprehensive
income (10SS) ..cceverveeruerenrereeneen ($455,508) $203,282 ($252,226)




17. Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses included in selling, gen-
eral and administrative expenses for the years ended March 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999 were ¥5,328 million ($42,968 thousand),
¥5,970 million and ¥4,820 million, respectively.

18. Leased Assets

The Company leases certain office space, employee residential
facilities, and computer and transportation equipment. Some
leased computer and transportation equipment are held under
capital leases. Other leases are classified as operating leases.

On April 23, 1996, the Company entered into a long-term lease
agreement for a building and land in Mitaka, Tokyo. The lease
agreement extends for 30 years beginning May 1, 1996. For
financial reporting purposes, the portion of the lease relating to
the building has been classified as a capital lease; accordingly,
an asset of approximately ¥5,086 million ($41,016 thousand) has
been recorded in the building and improvements account. The
portion of the lease relating to the land has been classified as an
operating lease. The future minimum lease payments for the site
at March 31, 2001 were ¥8,212 million ($66,226 thousand).

A summary of leased assets under capital leases at March 31,
2001 and 2000 is as follows:

In thousands of

In millions of yen U.S. dollars

March 31 March 31

2001 2000 2001

Buildings and improvements......... ¥ 5,086 ¥ 5,086 $ 41,016
Machinery, equipment

and automobiles.......ccccvvvieeiicnennnne 11,718 11,349 94,500

Intangible and others.......cccocveenne 172 222 1,387

Accumulated depreciation.............. (7,308) (6,620) (58,935)

¥ 9,668 ¥10,037 $ 77,968

Depreciation expenses under capital leases for the years ended
March 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were ¥2,890 million ($23,306
thousand), ¥2,527 million and ¥2,426 million, respectively.

The following is a schedule by year of future minimum lease
payments under capital leases together with the present value of
the net minimum lease payments at March 31, 2001:

In thousands of

Years ending March 31 In millions of yen U.S. dollars
2002 e ¥ 2,878 $ 23,210
2003 2,067 16,669
2004 ... e 1,358 10,951
804 6,484
480 3,871
Later YEars ..ccoucveeeeeeee e 7,173 57,847
Total minimum lease payments............ 14,760 119,032
Less: Amount representing interest...... 4,487 36,186
Present value of net minimum lease
payments (Note 11) ooeeeecrveeeeeiieiineees 10,273 82,846
Less: Current obligations ......c...ccceeeueeen. 2,469 19,911
Long-term capital lease obligations...... ¥ 7,804 $ 62,935

Rental expenses under operating leases for the years ended
March 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were ¥12,151 million ($97,992
thousand), ¥12,534 million and ¥10,458 million, respectively. A
significant portion of such rentals relates to cancelable short-term
leases for office space and employee residential facilities, many
of which are renewed upon expiration.

On December 8, 2000, the Company entered into a lease
agreement for a building and land in Shibuya, Tokyo. The lease
agreement extends for 20 years beginning December 8, 2000.
For financial reporting purposes, the lease has been classified as
an operating lease. Based on the agreement, annual lease pay-
ments for the site are approximately ¥1,339 million ($10,798
thousand) over a 20-year period.

The future minimum lease payments required under operating
leases that have initial or remaining non-cancelable lease terms
in excess of one year at March 31, 2001 are as follows:

In thousands of

Years ending March 31 In millions of yen U.S. dollars
2002 e ¥ 1,801 $ 14,524
1,744 14,065
1,686 13,597
1,667 13,444
1,666 13,435
Later YEarS .o ceeeeee it 26,245 211,653
Total future minimum lease payments ... ¥34,809 $280,718

19. Financial Instruments

The Company has certain financial instruments including
financial assets and liabilities and off-balance-sheet financial
instruments incurred in the normal course of business. Although
the Company may be exposed to losses in the event of non-
performance by counterparties, it does not anticipate significant
losses due to the nature of its counterparties.

Following are explanatory notes regarding the financial assets
and liabilities and off-balance-sheet financial instruments
excluding debt and equity securities which are disclosed in
Note 8.

(1) Cash and Cash Equivalents; Time Deposits; Cash Deposits;
Notes and Accounts Receivable, Trade; Due from Subscribers;
Short-Term Receivables; Bank Loans; Notes and Accounts
Payable, Trade; Deposits Received; and Accrued Payrolls

The carrying amounts approximate fair value because of
the short maturities of such instruments.

(2) Long-Term Receivables

Long-term receivables include loans to real estate investment
companies of ¥43,769 million ($352,976 thousand) at March 31,
2001, which are primarily mortgage loans on land and commer-
cial buildings. The mortgage loans are scheduled to mature over
a period from two to 10 years with interest rates ranging from
6.0 to 7.0 percent. The fair values of long-term receivables would
need to be calculated based on the present value of the future
cash flows based on estimated maturity and estimated market
discount rates. However, these estimated market discount rates
are subjective in terms of each borrower’s credit risks and involve
uncertainties and matters of significant judgement. Therefore, it is
not practicable to estimate the fair value of long-term receivables
to the Company.

(3) Long-Term Debt including Current Portion

The fair value of long-term debt including current portion was
estimated based on the discounted amounts of future cash flows
using the Company’s current incremental borrowing rates for
similar liabilities. The estimated fair values of total long-term
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debt including current portion and excluding obligations under
capital lease at March 31, 2001 and 2000 were ¥29,027 million
($234,089 thousand) and ¥18,982 million, respectively.

As long-term interest rates have not fluctuated significantly in
recent years in Japan, the carrying amounts of obligations under
capital lease approximate estimated fair value.

(4) Interest Rate Swap Agreements

An overseas subsidiary enters into interest rate swap agree-
ments to manage interest rate exposures arising in the normal
course of business. These agreements, amounting to ¥10,000 mil-
lion ($80,645 thousand), are designed to limit exposures to losses
resulting from fluctuations in LIBOR-based interest rates related to
investment securities and notes debt. These agreements are
scheduled to mature in 2002 and 2003.

On December 22, 1999, the parent company and its two
Japanese subsidiaries entered into interest rate swap agreements,
amounting to ¥10,000 million ($80,645 thousand) related to
LIBOR-based floating interest rate investment securities, whereby
the parent company and its two Japanese subsidiaries pay a
LIBOR-based floating rate of interest and receive a long-term
based floating swap rate. The Company believes that the long-
term based floating swap rate will provide higher interest income
to the Company compared to the LIBOR-based floating rate. This
swap agreement is designed to replace LIBOR-based interest
income with long-term swap rate interest income for the invest-
ment securities. This agreement is scheduled to mature in 2004.

The total notional value of interest rate swap agreements in
effect at March 31, 2001 and 2000 totaled ¥21,118 million
($170,306 thousand) and ¥21,183 million, respectively, of which
¥5,000 million ($40,323 thousand) will mature by 2002, ¥5,000
million ($40,323 thousand) will mature by 2003, ¥10,000 million
($80,645 thousand) will mature by 2004 and ¥1,118 million
($9,016 thousand) will mature by 2010. The amounts to be paid
or received under the interest rate swap agreements are recog-
nized over the terms of the agreements. The estimated fair values
of such agreements, based on the discounted future cash flows
of the differentials, were insignificant at March 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.

20. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Commitments outstanding at March 31, 2001 for the purchase
of property, plant and equipment approximated ¥1,463 million
($11,798 thousand).

Contingent liabilities at March 31, 2001 for guarantees given in
the ordinary course of business amounted to approximately
¥52,546 million ($423,758 thousand).

On May 21, 2001, the Japan Fair Trade Commission concluded
a one year investigation and advised 11 companies including
one of the Company’s subsidiaries, Pasco, to remove unfair com-
petitive practices concerning the tender for aerial surveying and
mapping services which was placed an order by Miyagi and
Fukushima prefecture bureaus. On May 30, 2001, Pasco accepted
the advice. The advice resulted in the suspension of Pasco’s right
to submit tenders for certain government agency projects. The
Company management considers that this suspension will not
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s future consoli-
dated results of operations and consolidated financial position,
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although Pasco’s results of operations may be affected. The
Company management has reinforced its organization to ensure
that its business practices rigorously conform with commercial
laws and regulations.

21. Free Share Distributions of less than 25 Percent

The method of accounting for the Company’s less than 25 per-
cent free share distributions is described in Note 2. Had the
Company accounted for such free share distributions made dur-
ing the period from 1974 to 1990 in the manner used by compa-
nies in the United States of America, ¥98,388 million ($793,452
thousand) would have been transferred from retained earnings
to the appropriate capital accounts. However, there would be no
effect on total shareholders’ equity.

22. Gain on Sale of Subsidiaries’ Shares

On August 31, 1998, The Westec Security Group, Inc.
(“Westec”), a wholly owned subsidiary in the United States of
America, sold all of the outstanding shares of Westec Residential
Security, Inc. and all of the outstanding shares of Valley Burglar
& Fire Alarm Company, Inc. to Edison Select for an aggregate
sales price of ¥37,025 million ($298,589 thousand) in cash. The
sale resulted in a gain in the aggregate of ¥22,828 million
($184,097 thousand).

On October 1, 1998, the parent company sold all of the
outstanding shares of Tokyo Internet Corporation to PSINet
Japan Inc. for ¥17,834 million ($143,823 thousand). The sale
resulted in a gain of ¥13,054 million ($105,274 thousand). The
Company recognized a further gain of ¥496 million ($4,000 thou-
sand) for the year ended March 31, 2001 in accordance with the
final sales price.

On October 15, 1999, Secom Techno Service Co., Ltd. (“Secom
Techno”), a 98.3 percent owned subsidiary, completed an initial
public offering on the Second Section of the Tokyo Stock
Exchange. In conjunction with the offering, the parent company
sold 2,000,000 outstanding shares of Secom Techno for a sales
price of ¥4,512 million ($36,387 thousand). Through a secondary
offering, Secom Techno issued an additional 2,000,000 shares for
total proceeds of ¥4,512 million ($36,387 thousand). As a result of
these transactions, the parent company’s ownership in Secom
Techno declined to 67.8 percent. The resulting pre-tax gains on the
sale of subsidiary shares and new issuance of Secom Techno's
shares of ¥2,313 million ($18,653 thousand) and ¥1,978 million
($15,952 thousand), respectively, are recognized in the consoli-
dated statement of income for the year ended March 31, 2000.

In the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended
March 31, 2000, the gain on sale of subsidiary shares are
excluded from cash flows from operating activities and the
related cash proceeds are classified in the cash flows from
investing activities. The cash proceeds from the new issuance by
Secom Techno to minority shareholders are classified in the
cash flows from financing activities.

On April 28, 2000, Westec sold all of the outstanding shares of
Westec Business Security, Inc. to ADT Security Services, Inc. for
an aggregate sales price of ¥1,016 million ($8,194 thousand) in
cash. The sale resulted in a gain of ¥571 million ($4,605 thousand).
The sales price is subject to a final sales price adjustment.



23. Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Supplemental cash flow information is as follows:

In thousands of

In millions of yen U.S. dollars
Years ended Year ended
March 31 March 31
2001 2000 1999 2001

Cash paid during the year for:
INterest. . ¥ 1,883¥ 1,509 ¥ 1,599 $ 15,185
Income taxes......ccceeeveeereeenn ¥25,762 ¥ 30,841 ¥ 37,209 $207,758

Non-cash investing and
financing activities:
Conversion of convertible
bond to common stock and
additional paid-in capital ... ¥ 60¥ 774 ¥ 766 $ 484

Additions to obligations

under capital leases.......... ¥ 2,654¥ 3,344 ¥ 2,032 $ 21,403
Acquisition—

Fair value of assets

acquired ....cooeceeeeieeeeenes ¥ 7,550 ¥ 48,579 ¥112,362 $ 60,887
Cash paid for capital

STOCK uveeeeeeeeeeieee e (3,980) (15,000) (9,029) (32,097)
Minority shareholders’

interest ....cooeeceeeeeeeeeenen. —  (4,541) (3,739) —

Net liabilities

assumed.....ccceeeeveeeennnnns ¥ 3,570 ¥ 29,038 ¥ 99,594 $ 28,790

24. Segment Information

Effective for the year ended March 31, 1999, the Company
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131,
“Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information”, which requires disclosure of financial and descrip-
tive information about the Company’s reportable operating seg-
ments. The operating segments reported below are the segments
of the Company for which separate financial information is avail-
able and for which operating profit/loss amounts are evaluated
regularly by executive management in deciding how to allocate
resources and assess performance.

The Company has four reportable business segments: security
services, medical services, insurance services, and information
and communication related and other services.

The security services segment provides various types of secu-
rity services by utilizing the Company’s unique security systems
and manufactures and sells security equipment. The medical
services segment provides intravenous solutions to patients at
home, home-based nursing care services and medical data
transmission services by utilizing the Company’s network. The
insurance services segment represents non-life insurance-related
underwriting business in the Japanese market. The information
and communication related and other services segment repre-
sents the Company’s network business, aerial surveying and
mapping services, and Geographic Information System services
as well as development and sale of real estate services. The
Company develops real estate, principally condominiums, for
consumers, to promote a network of integrated communication
systems to create synergies with home security services. These
communication services are considered a subset or an integrated
part of the real estate package.

Revenues and other income by segment include interest
income and other revenue reasonably allocated to the segments.
Corporate revenues include interest income, investment income,

net exchange gains and dividend income from companies unaf-
filiated with the parent company or Westec, a wholly owned
subsidiary as a holding company in the United States of
America. Corporate expenses include general and administrative
expenses, amortization of deferred assets and net exchange
losses of these two companies.

Intersegment sales are priced on a basis intended to
approximate amounts charged to unaffiliated customers.

Identifiable assets are those assets used exclusively in the
operations of each segment or which are allocated when used
jointly. Corporate assets, which are held by the above two com-
panies for general and administrative facilities, consist principally
of cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, invest-
ment securities, land, buildings, machinery and equipment.

Information by business and geographic segments for the
years ended March 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 is as follows:

(1) Business Segment Information

In thousands of

In millions of yen U.S. dollars

Years ended Year ended

March 31 March 31

2001 2000 1999 2001

Revenue and other

income:

Security services—
Customers....... ¥316,139 ¥295,834 ¥293,104 $2,549,508
Intersegment 1,285 3,305 975 10,363

317,424 299,139 294,079 2,559,871

Medical services—

Customers .....ccccecvuuneees 6,347 1,326 1,075 51,186
Intersegment............... 147 140 117 1,185
6,494 1,466 1,192 52,371

Insurance services—
Customers .....coeevveeeens 22,681 30,435 4,775 182,911
Intersegment ............... 2,030 2,250 2,099 16,371
24,711 32,685 6,874 199,282

Information and
communication
related and other

services—

Customers .....c.cceevuveeees 92,552 72,684 55,367 746,387

Intersegment................ 5,715 1,821 2,989 46,089

98,267 74,505 58,356 792,476

o] 71 PO 446,896 407,795 360,501 3,604,000
Eliminations... (9,177) (7,516) (6,180) (74,008)
Corporate items............. 29,952 12,118 39,825 241,548
Consolidated revenue

and other income......... ¥467,671 ¥412,397 ¥394,146 $3,771,540

Income (loss) before

income taxes:
Security services............ ¥ 77,389 ¥ 76,073 ¥ 69,890 $ 624,104
Medical services............ (1,522) (566) (1,053) (12,274)
Insurance services......... (1,627) 4,455 265 (13,121)
Information and

communication

related and other

services... 366 2,137 (978) 2,952
o] 7Y P 74,606 82,099 68,124 601,661
Corporate items and

eliminations ................. 9,865 (8,063) 15,647 79,557
Interest expense .. (1,812) (1,229) (1,078) (14,613)

Consolidated income
before income taxes.... ¥ 82,659 ¥ 72,807 ¥ 82,693 $ 666,605
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In thousands of

In millions of yen U.S. dollars
March 31 March 31
2001 2000 1999 2001
Assets:
Security services............ ¥369,582 ¥322,681 ¥311,339 $2,980,500
Medical services............ 11,241 2,061 1,462 90,653
Insurance services......... 199,308 142,289 113,210 1,607,323
Information and
communication
related and other
services... 137,362 154,045 51,396 1,107,758
L o) 7 | PO 717,493 621,076 477,407 5,786,234
Corporate items............. 118,292 133,522 141,037 953,968
Investments in and
loans to affiliated
COMPANIES...everrereerrnenen. 32,419 24,950 25,010 261,443
Total assets...cccceeeeeuennes ¥868,204 ¥779,5648 ¥643,454  $7,001,645
In thousands of
In millions of yen U.S. dollars
Years ended Year ended
March 31 March 31
2001 2000 1999 2001
Depreciation and
amortization:
Security services............ ¥39,005 ¥31,361 ¥28,913 $314,556
Medical services............ 546 94 69 4,403
Insurance services......... 381 (625) 3 3,073
Information and
communication
related and other
services 4,039 3,234 1,315 32,573
Total..coeeeceeenes 43,971 34,064 30,300 354,605
Corporate items 804 168 242 6,484
Total depreciation
and amortization.......... ¥44,775 ¥34,232 ¥30,542 $361,089
Capital expenditures:
Security services............ ¥48,220 ¥36,459 ¥42,758 $388,872
Medical services.. 376 132 79 3,032
Insurance services......... 61 278 — 492
Information and
communication
related and other
SEIVICES..civvereerieerrnaens 3,634 3,449 1,119 29,306
L o] 7 | PO 52,291 40,318 43,956 421,702
Corporate items............. 2,769 983 1,542 22,330
Total capital
expenditures................ ¥55,060 ¥41,301 ¥45,498 $444,032

The capital expenditures in the above table represent the
additions to property, plant and equipment of each segment.
The Company has no single customer that accounts for more

than 10 percent of total revenue.
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The following table is a breakdown of security services rev-
enue to external customers by service category. The security
services business is managed as a single operating segment by

the Company’s management.

In thousands of

In millions of yen U.S. dollars
Years ended Year ended
March 31 March 31
2001 2000 1999 2001
Electronic security
services:
Commercial security
and home security ..... ¥230,763 ¥221,765 ¥219,670 $1,860,992
Large-scale
proprietary systems... 3,647 3,773 4,223 29,411
Other security services:
Static guard services.... 32,204 31,663 30,178 259,710
Armored car services... 15,109 13,540 12,275 121,847
Merchandise and other ... 34,416 25,093 26,758 277,548
Total security services..... ¥316,139 ¥295,834 ¥293,104  $2,549,508

(2) Geographic Segment Information

Revenue and other income attributed to countries based on
location of customers and long-lived assets for the years ended

March 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 was as follows:

In thousands of

In millions of yen U.S. dollars
Years ended Year ended
March 31 March 31
2001 2000 1999 2001

Revenue and other

income:

Japan....eennens ¥455,001 ¥398,838 ¥349,702 $3,669,363
United States 3,585 4,330 33,580 28,911
9,085 9,229 10,864 73,266
¥467,671 ¥412,397 ¥394,146 $3,771,540

In thousands of

In millions of yen U.S. dollars
March 31 March 31
2001 2000 1999 2001

Long-lived assets:
Japan......niienes ¥232,325 ¥191,628 ¥169,737 $1,873,589
United States... 497 536 584 4,008
Others.....ccoueeee 5,924 6,134 6,627 47,774
Total cveeeeeeeeeeeeeees ¥238,746 ¥198,298 ¥176,948 $1,925,371

There are no individually material countries with respect to
revenue and other income and long-lived assets included in

other areas.

25. Subsequent Event

On June 27, 2001, the parent company issued a 0.53 percent
fixed rate straight bond, aggregating ¥30,000 million ($241,935
thousand), due on June 27, 2006 in compliance with the Board
resolution on June 5, 2001. The proceeds are to be used for

capital expenditures and operating activities.



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT .

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Secom Co., Ltd.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Secom Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2001,
and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then
ended, all expressed in Japanese yen. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Secom Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2000 and for each
of the two years in the period then ended, were audited by other auditors whose report dated May 15, 2000, expressed an
unqualified opinion on those statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the fiscal 2001 consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Secom Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2001, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

As discussed in Note 2 (12) to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of revenue
recognition in fiscal 2001.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2001 have been translated
into United States dollars solely for the convenience of the reader. We have recomputed the translation and, in our opinion,
the consolidated financial statements expressed in yen have been translated into United States dollars on the basis set forth
in Note 3 of the notes to consolidated financial statements.

Tokyo, Japan

May 15, 2001, except as to Notes 20 and 25, which are as of May 30, 2001 and June 27, 2001, respectively
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. SUMMARY OF SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

SECOM CO., LTD. and Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31

In millions of yen

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996
Composition of consolidated revenue
and other income by segment
Revenue and other inCOMe .......coocciieeiiciieei e ¥467,671 ¥412,397 ¥394,146 ¥322,804 ¥303,796 ¥281,547
SECUItY SEIVICES: tiieiieeeereeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e e seee e e s snee e e enneeeeeas . 316,139 295,834 293,104 282,066 266,209 248,406
As a percentage of revenue and other income........... 67.6% 71.8% 74.4% 87.3% 87.7% 88.2%
Electronic security services—
Commercial security and home security .......ccceeecvveerenne 230,763 221,765 219,670 209,855 199,498 184,657
As a percentage of revenue and other income 49.3 53.8 55.7 65.0 65.7 65.6
Large-scale proprietary systems.......cccccvvvceevissieeeennne . 3,647 3,773 4,223 4,264 3,980 4,028
As a percentage of revenue and other income 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.3 1.4
SUDLOTAl eeveeeiiceie e 234,410 225,538 223,893 214,119 203,478 188,685
Other security services—
Static gUArd SEIVICES.....uuiiieeiieeeeeeeeeeeeee e e e e e e e e e 32,204 31,663 30,178 28,852 26,487 24,768
As a percentage of revenue and other income . 6.9 7.7 7.7 8.9 8.7 8.8
Armored Car SEIVICES ...uuuuiiiiiirieeerieessieeesseesseesssee e . 15,109 13,540 12,275 11,522 10,558 9,566
As a percentage of revenue and other income . 3.2 3.3 3.1 3.6 3.5 3.4
SUDLOTAl .eeveeiieeeie e 47,313 45,203 42,453 40,374 37,045 34,334
Merchandise and other ......cccccvcerviecciiccc e 34,416 25,093 26,758 27,573 25,686 25,387
As a percentage of revenue and other income . 7.4 6.1 6.8 8.5 8.5 9.0
Medical SErVICES ...uuiiiiriiie et 6,347 1,326 1,075 855 681 532
As a percentage of revenue and other income........... 1.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2
Insurance services . 22,681 30,435 4,775 5,365 4,633 3,917
As a percentage of revenue and other income........... 4.8 7.4 1.2 1.7 1.5 1.4
Information and communication related
ANd OthEr SEIVICES ..uuviiiiiiiiii i 92,552 72,684 55,367 30,910 29,301 19,353
As a percentage of revenue and other income .. 19.8 17.6 14.0 9.6 9.7 6.9
(OFeT g o ToT =Y (=T (=] 0 T TSN . 29,952 12,118 39,825 3,608 2,972 9,339
As a percentage of revenue and other income 6.4 2.9 10.1 1.1 0.9 3.3
Net income, cash dividends and
shareholders’ equity
N L= ST oY o 1= ¥ 44,118 ¥ 47,432 ¥ 49,918 ¥ 18,990 ¥ 22,798 ¥ 23,264
Cash dividends (paid)®... . 9,323 8,146 7,555 6,972 5,719 5,459

Shareholders’ equity ...... 377,532 373,912 327,147 283,840 284,634 260,854

Consolidated financial ratios
Percentage of working capital accounted for by:

Debt—
BanK 10@NS ....cocuiiiiiiieii e 14.9 15.7 8.4 5.7 8.3 8.8
Current portion of long-term debit.... 29 1.2 25 1.7 2.3 5.2
Convertible bonds ...... 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.6 0.7 0.9
Other long-term debt.. . 4.8 4.8 5.2 6.4 3.7 3.4
Total debt........ceeu. . 22.7 21.8 16.4 14.4 15.0 18.3
Shareholders’ equity... . 77.3 78.2 83.6 85.6 85.0 81.7
Total capitalization...........ccccuue... . 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
Return on total assets (percent) (a) ...... .. 5.1 6.1 7.8 4.0 4.9 5.3
Return on equity (percent) (b).....cooeeeieiiiiee e 11.7 12.7 15.3 6.7 8.0 8.9
Percent of revenue and other income absorbed by:
Depreciation and amortization........ccccoeceeeeeesieeensseee e 9.6 8.3 7.8 9.2 9.5 11.5
Rental expense 2.6 3.0 2.7 3.2 3.4 3.7
Ratio of accumulated depreciation to depreciable
ASSELS (PEICENT) weeeiiiieiei i 61.5 63.8 62.1 61.7 60.8 60.6
Net property turnover (tiMmes) .......ccooerrieerieeeieeeeeee e 2.36 2.42 2.53 2.15 2.27 2.22
Before-tax interest coverage (times) (C)...oovcveeeriiceeeniinineeniniinns 46.6 60.2 77.7 50.3 46.4 37.8
Before-tax interest and rental coverage (times) (d) ....cccoeeveenes 15.1 14.5 19.1 12.5 12.7 11.6

Note: Installation revenue is included in the corresponding electronic security services.
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2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996
Number of shares outstanding
[T U= o PP 233,099,744 233,075,442 116,392,109 116,233,393 116,203,824 114,378,620
Owned by the CoOmMPaNY .......ceeieciieiiiieer e 510 4,840 11,817 3,185 2,926 2,016
BalANCe....cc e 233,099,234 233,070,602 116,380,292 116,230,208 116,200,898 114,376,604
Per share information
Basic net income per share (in yen)? .......cccooeiiieeriiieeneeieeeeens ¥ 189.28 ¥ 203.67 ¥ 21451 ¥ 81.70 ¥ 98.69 ¥ 102.09
Cash dividends paid per share (in yen)® ........ccccevoeerieeniennnnen. 40.00 35.00 32.50 30.00 25.00 24.00
Shareholders’ equity per share (in yen) ......ccccocceeveeeiveeeeecnnnn. 1,619.62 1,604.29 1,405.51 1,221.03 1,224.75 1,140.33
Cash flow per share (in yen)2© ... 341.38 310.63 310.76 177.01 193.68 219.14
Price/Book value ratio.......ccccveeeueeeriiieiee s 4.38 5.49 3.99 3.34 2.84 3.06
Price/Earnings ratio.....cccucceeeeeeiiiee s 37.51 43.21 26.15 49.88 35.21 34.23
Price/Cash flow ratio........ccccecueruen. 20.80 28.33 18.05 23.02 17.94 15.95
Stock price at year-end (in yen) 7,100 8,800 5,610 4,075 3,475 3,495
Notes: (a) Net income/Total assets (1) Per share amounts have been adjusted to reflect the impact of a
(b) Net income/Shareholders’ equity stock split on November 19, 1999.
(c) (Income before income taxes + Interest expense)/Interest expense The number of shares outstanding at the end of each year ended
(d) (Income before income taxes + Interest expense + 1/3 Rental March 31, has not been adjusted to reflect this stock split.
expense)/(Interest expense + 1/3 Rental expense) (2 Per share amounts are based on the average number of shares
(e) (Netincome + Depreciation and amotization - Dividend approved) / outstanding during each period.
Average number of shares outstanding during each period 3) Subsequent to March 31, 2001, cash dividends of ¥9,324 million (¥40
per share) were approved at the general shareholders’ meeting on
June 28, 2001 (see Note 16 of the accompanying notes to
consolidated financial statements).
(4) Per share amounts are based on the number of shares outstanding
at the end of each period, minus treasury stock.
common sTock DATA [l
SECOM CO., LTD.
Years ended March 31
SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996
Number of shareholders ............cccccooeiiiiiiiiiees 15,621 15,019 9,458 9,911 10,849 11,223
Common shares held by:
Financial institutions 44.44% 42.74% 45.71% 44.26% 42.57% 40.00%
Securities firms ......cccoeuueee.. 1.73 2.66 0.90 0.98 1.31 1.35
Other COrporationS.......ocevieeiiie e 13.84 13.86 13.67 13.73 14.05 14.49
FOreign iNVESTOrS .....oi et 25.76 25.96 26.90 27.40 27.03 28.04
Individuals and others ..o, 14.23 14.78 12.82 13.63 15.04 16.12
TOTAl e ————- 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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PRICE INFORMATION (TOKYO STOCK EXCHANGE)

Price per share

Nikkei stock average

High Low High Low

RS E LS T A oY | T T V- S ¥13,370 ¥10,630 ¥17,782.79 ¥15,972.68
July-September......... 22,150 8,150 18,532.58 16,821.06
October-December.... 12,640 9,300 18,934.34 17,254.17
2000  JANUANY=IVIAICR c.ciiiiiii ittt e e e e s e e e e arr e e e e e e e e e e e e aaaes 11,490 7,650 20,706.65 18,168.27
N o L 1 e U o TS 9,380 6,880 20,833.21 16,008.14
ST o] =Y 2101 o Y=Y SO 8,800 6,050 17,614.66 15,626.96

(163 (o] o =T ol DI=Tel=T 0 oY o Y=Y RSP 9,050 6,700 16,149.08 13,423.21

20071  JAnUAry—IMarch ...coooueeooieie et 7,900 6,050 14,032.42 11,819.70

Note: Price amounts have not been adjusted to reflect a two-for-one stock split, which was reflected in the market from September 27, 1999.

COMMON STOCK ISSUES
Shares Share capital
Additional outstanding after issue
shares issued after issue (In thousands Allotment ratio
Date (In thousands) (In thousands) of yen) to shareholders Remarks
June 15, 1974 1,968 9,200 ¥ 460,000 — Issue at market price (¥900)
Dec. 21,1974 2,760 11,960 598,000 3for 10 Stock split
May 21, 1975 1,196 13,156 657,800 1for 10 Stock split
May 21, 1975 1,244 14,400 720,000 — Issue at market price (¥1,134)
Dec. 1,1975 4,320 18,720 936,000 3 for 10 Stock split
May 31, 1976 1,880 20,600 1,030,000 — Issue at market price (¥2,570)
June 1, 1976 2,060 22,660 1,133,000 1 for 10 Stock split
Dec. 1,1976 6,798 29,458 1,472,900 3 for 10 Stock split
Nov. 30, 1977 2,042 31,500 1,575,000 — Issue at market price (¥1,700)
Dec. 1,1977 6,300 37,800 1,890,000 2 for 10 Stock split
Dec. 1,1978 7,560 45,360 2,268,000 2 for 10 Stock split
June 1, 1981 3,000 48,360 2,418,000 — Issue at market price (¥2,230)
Dec. 1, 1981 4,836 53,196 2,659,800 1 for 10 Stock split
Jan. 20, 1983 5,320 58,516 3,000,000 1 for 10 Stock split
Nov. 30, 1983 194 58,710 3,280,942 — Conversion of convertible bonds
Nov. 30, 1984 1,418 60,128 5,329,282 — Conversion of convertible bonds
Nov. 30, 1985 186 60,314 5,602,945 — Conversion of convertible bonds
Jan. 20, 1986 6,031 66,345 5,602,945 1 for 10 Stock split
Nov. 30, 1986 2,878 69,223 11,269,932 — Conversion of convertible bonds
Nov. 30, 1987 1,609 70,832 15,021,200 — Conversion of convertible bonds
Jan. 20, 1988 3,541 74,373 15,021,200 0.5 for 10 Stock split
Nov. 30, 1988 439 74,812 16,063,099 — Conversion of convertible bonds
Nov. 30, 1989 1,808 76,620 21,573,139 — Conversion of convertible bonds
Jan. 19, 1990 22,986 99,606 21,573,139 3 for 10 Stock split
Mar. 31, 1990 1,446 101,052 25,070,104 — Conversion of convertible bonds
Mar. 31, 1991 2,949 104,001 32,244,732 — Conversion of convertible bonds
Mar. 31, 1992 2,035 106,036 37,338,751 — Conversion of convertible bonds
Mar. 31, 1993 267 106,303 37,991,568 — Conversion of convertible bonds
Mar. 31, 1994 6,986 113,289 56,756,263 — Conversion of convertible bonds
Mar. 31, 1995 477 113,766 58,214,178 — Conversion of convertible bonds
Mar. 31, 1996 613 114,379 59,865,105 — Conversion of convertible bonds
Mar. 31, 1997 1,825 116,204 65,253,137 — Conversion of convertible bonds
Mar. 31, 1998 29 116,233 65,327,060 — Conversion of convertible bonds
Mar. 31, 1999 159 116,392 65,709,927 — Conversion of convertible bonds
Nov. 19, 1999 116,410 232,802 65,709,927 10 for 10* Stock split
Mar. 31, 2000 273 233,075 66,096,852 — Conversion of convertible bonds
Mar. 31, 2001 25 233,100 66,126,854 — Conversion of convertible bonds

Note: The above is a record of SECOM’'s common stock issues since the common stock was listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange in June 1974.

*One share was split into two.
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